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NOTICE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Thirty Eighth Annual General Meeting of the Members of Chandi 
Steel Industries Limited will be held on Friday 30th September, 2016 at 11:00 a.m. at the Registered Office of the 
Company situated at 3, Bentinck Street, Kolkata – 700 001 to transact the following businesses: 
 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 

Item No. 1 
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2016 together with the Report of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 
 

Item No. 2 
To appoint a Director in place of Shri Susanta Sarkar (holding DIN – 06449312), who retires by rotation and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
 

Item No. 3 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and all other applicable provisions if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), M/s. Rashmi & Co., Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 309122E), of 213, Todi Chamber, 2, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata – 700 001, be 
and are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this 
Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting, at such remuneration apart 
from reimbursement of out of pocket expenses and taxes as applicable, as may be mutually agreed between the 
Board of Directors of the Company and the Statutory Auditors”. 
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 

Item No. 4 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in 
force) and Regulation 16(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,   
Smt. Swati Agarwal (DIN –  07158355), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the 
Board of the Directors with effect from 13th November, 2015 based on the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, in terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and who holds office up to the 
date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a 
Member of the Company under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing her candidature for the office 
of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company not liable to retire by rotation 
to hold office for a period of one term of 5 years with effect from 13th November, 2015.” 
 

Item No. 5 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149,152 read with schedule IV and all other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in 
force) and Regulation 16(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
Shri Ashok Kumar Choudhary (DIN – 07603658), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company 
by the Board of Directors with effect from 1st September, 2016 based on the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, in terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and who hold office up to 
the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing 
from a Member of the Company under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing his candidature for the 
office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company not liable to retire by 
rotation to hold office for a period of 5 years with effect from 1st September, 2016. 
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Item No. 6 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in 
force) and Regulation 16(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,   
Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit (DIN –  07603642), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by 
the Board of the Directors with effect from 1st September, 2016, based on the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, in terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and who holds office up to 
the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing 
from a Member of the Company under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing his candidature for the 
office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company not liable to retire by 
rotation to hold office for a period of one term of 5 years with effect from 1st September, 2016.” 
 

Item No. 7 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), a consolidated remuneration of Rs. 20,000/- 
(excluding applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of pocket expenses, if any) as recommended by the Audit 
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 11th August, 2016 to be paid to 
Mondal & Associates, Proprietor Mr. Amiya Mondal, being the Cost Auditors of the Company, having office at 
45, Akhil Mistry Lane, Kolkata – 700 009 for conducting the audit of the cost records of the Company and 
providing Cost Audit Report and all such reports, annexures, records, documents etc., for the financial year 
2016-17, that may be required to be prepared and submitted by the Cost Auditors under applicable statute, be and 
is hereby ratified.”  

 

Item No.8  
 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as a Special 
Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), and any other applicable laws, 
rules, regulations, notifications, circulars and the relevant provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company and subject to the limits on borrowings set out by the Shareholders, the consent of 
the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to convert the 
advance received from the Disha Realcon Private Limited and Samriddhi Metals Private Limited into 2,00,000 
(Two Lakh only) Zero Coupon, Unsecured, Unlisted, Non-Convertible Debentures (herein referred to as 
‘Debentures’) at a face value of ₹100/- per debenture, on such terms and conditions as set out herein below: 
 

a. The Debentures shall be unsecured and will rank pari passu with all other unsecured borrowings of the 
Company. 
 

b. The Debentures shall not carry any interest. 
 

 

c. The Debentures shall be Non-Convertible and shall be redeemable within 3 months from the expiry of ten 
years from the date of allotment at par or at premium as may be decided by the Board. 
 

d. The Debentures can be re-issued at the option of the Board subject to the consent of Debenture Holders. 
 

e. The terms of issue of the Debentures can be altered or varied by the Board at any time after the issue of 
Debentures subject to the consent of Debenture Holders. 
 

f. The Debentures shall be non-marketable, thus non-transferable. 
 

g. The respective Debenture Certificates, Letters of Allotment in respect of the Debentures shall be 
completed and issued within three months from the date of allotment thereof. 
 

h. The Debenture by itself does not give to the Debenture holder any rights of the shareholders of the 
Company. 
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board be and is hereby 
authorised to take such steps and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as the Board may, in its absolute 
discretion, deem necessary, expedient, usual, proper, incidental or desirable and to settle any question, difficulties 
or doubts that may arise in this regard and in regard to the allotment of the Debentures and enter and execute all 
such deeds, documents, agreements or other instruments, and to take such actions/directions as they may consider 
as being necessary or desirable and to obtain any approvals, permissions, sanctions which may be necessary or 
desirable as they may deem fit.” 
 
Item No.9  

 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 
23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject to such other approvals, consents, 
permissions and sanctions of any authorities as may be necessary, consent of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term shall include any 
Committee thereof constituted by the Board to exercise its powers, including the powers conferred by this 
Resolution) to enter into contracts, arrangements, transactions including material transactions with its related 
parties, in any financial year on such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed upon between the 
Company and its related parties, as per details given below: 
 

Name of the 
Related Party 

Nature of Relationship Nature of Contract Estimated 
amount per 
annum 
(Amount in 
Crore) 

Jai Balaji Industries 
Limited (JBIL) 

JBIL is a Public Company in which 
Director along with its Relatives holds 
more than 2% of its paid-up share 
capital 

Purchase/ Sale of 
goods/materials on an  
arms length basis  and 
in ordinary Course of 
business, Corporate 
Guarantee 
given/obtained 

100 

Jai Salasar Balaji 
Industries Pvt. Ltd. 
(JSBIPL) 

JSBIPL is a Private Company having 
common Directorship/Membership.  

Purchase/ Sale of 
goods/materials on an 
arms length  basis  and 
in ordinary Course of 
business 

100 

Balaji Ispat Udyog 
(BIU) 

BIU is a Proprietorship Firm in 
Director’s brother is Proprietor. 

Purchase/ Sale of 
goods/materials on an 
arms length  basis  and 
in ordinary Course of 
business 

50 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Regulation 23(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 any material related party transaction already entered by the 
Company with its related parties as on the date of this resolution be and is hereby approved and ratified.” 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to decide upon the nature of Related 
Party Transactions to be entered into with its Related Parties within the aforesaid limit;  
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do and perform all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient for giving effect to this Resolution.” 
 

 
Registered Office:                      By Order of the Board 
3, Bentinck Street,                                                       For Chandi Steel Industries Limited 
Kolkata – 700 001            
                      Sd/- 
Place: Kolkata                                                                      Seema Chowdhury 
Date: 3rd September, 2016                            Company Secretary   
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Notes: 

 

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, setting out the material 
facts concerning each item of Special Business under item no. 5 to 9 to be transacted at the Thirty-Eighth 
Annual General Meeting (‘the meeting’) is annexed hereto and forms part of the Notice. 

 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Members and Share 
Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday, 24th September, 2016 to Friday, 30th 

September, 2016 (both days inclusive). 
 
3. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ALSO ENTITLED TO 

APPOINT PROXY/PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF 
HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.  

 

Pursuant to Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder a person can act as a proxy 
on behalf of the member or members not exceeding 50 (Fifty) and holding in aggregate not more than 10% 
of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. Also, a member holding more than 10% of 
the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, may appoint a single person as a proxy 
provided that such a person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or member. If a proxy is appointed 
for more than 50 (fifty) members, he/she shall choose any 50 (fifty) members and confirm the same to the 
company before the commencement of specified period for inspection. In case, proxy fails to do so, the 
company shall consider only first 50 (fifty) proxies as valid. The instrument appointing the proxy shall be in 
writing and be signed by the appointer or his attorney duly authorized in writing or if the appointer is a body 
corporate, be under its seal or be signed by an officer or an attorney duly authorized by it and in order to be 
effective, should be deposited at the registered office of the Company, duly completed stamped and signed, 
not less than 48 (Forty Eight) hours before the commencement of the meeting. A proxy form is annexed to 
this Report.  
 

Further, proxies submitted on behalf of authorized representative of the companies, societies etc. must be 
supported by appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable. Members who hold shares in dematerialized 
form are requested to bring their Photo Identity Card for easy identification of attendance at the meeting. 
 

Every member entitled to vote at the meeting shall be entitled during the period beginning 24 hours before 
the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, to 
inspect the proxies lodged, at any time during business hours between 11 a.m. to 6 p.m., provided that not 
less than 3 days notice in writing of the intention to inspect is given by the member to the Company. 

 

4. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the Annual General Meeting, 
pursuant to Section 113 of Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company, a certified true copy 
of the Board Resolution together with respective specimen signature of those representative(s) authorized 
under said resolution to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting. 
 

5. Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to intimate any change in their address to the 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited, 6 Mangoe Lane, Kolkata – 
700 001 and members holding shares in demat mode are requested to intimate any change in their address or 
bank mandates to their respective Depository Participants. Any such changes effected by the Depository 
Participants will automatically reflect in the Company’s subsequent records. 

 

To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company 
of any change or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to leave their 
demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holding should be obtained from Depository 
Participant and holding should be verified. 

 
6. Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same 

order of names are requested to write to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, Maheshwari 
Datamatics Private Limited, 6 Mangoe Lane, Kolkata – 700 001, enclosing their share certificates to enable 
the Company to consolidate their holdings into single folio. 

 



Chandi Steel Industries Limited 

7. Members who hold shares in physical form are also requested to take immediate action to demat their shares 
to avail easy liquidity since trading of shares of the Company are under compulsory demat mode as per the 
regulations of SEBI and also to prevent any loss of physical Share Certificate. 

 
8. Pursuant to Section 88 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Register of Members is required to be maintained in 

form MGT -1. In this respect, members holding shares in physical form are requested to inform/update the 
following additional details to the RTA, Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. of  6, Mangoe Lane, Kolkata – 
700 001, who have not yet so updated. 

 
a. E-mail id (of the first holder) 
b. PAN 
c. Unique Identification Number (AADHAR NO.) 
d. Father’s/Mother’s/Spouse’s Name 
e. Occupation 
f. In case the member is a minor, Name of the Guardian and date of birth of the Member 
g. CIN no. (In case the member is a body corporate) 

 
9. Members are requested to quote the Folio/Client ID & DP ID Nos. in all correspondences. 

 
10. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for the financial year 2015-16 and the Notice of the Thirty Eighth 

Annual General Meeting of the Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting along 
with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form and route map is being sent to all the members whose email IDs 
are registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes. However, 
members who have not yet registered their email address shall be furnished with physical copies of the 
aforesaid Notice of Thirty Eighth Annual General Meeting of the Company in the permitted mode.  
 
Members who have received the Notice of Annual General Meeting, Annual report and Attendance Slip 
in electronic mode are requested to print the Attendance Slip and submit a duly filled in Attendance Slip 
at the Registration Counter at the Annual General Meeting. 
 
Members are also informed that the Notice of the Thirty Eighth Annual General Meeting of the 
Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy 
Form as well as the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2015-16 shall also be available on the website 
of the Company viz. “www.jaibalajigroup.com” on the website of the CDSL for their download. 
 
In keeping view with Ministry of Corporate Affairs “Green Initiatives” measures and applicable 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules there under, the Company requests members who 
have not registered their e-mail address so far, to register their e-mail address for receiving all 
communications including Annual Report, notices etc from the Company electronically.  
 

11. All the documents referred to in the accompanying notice are available for inspection by the members at 
the Registered Office of the Company on all working days (except Saturdays and Sundays), between 
11:00 A.M. to 1:00 P.M. upto the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting. 
 

12. Register of Directors and Key Managerial personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 
170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Register of Contracts and Arrangements in which Directors are 
interested under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be made available for inspection at the 
Annual General Meeting.   

 
13. Members seeking further information on the Accounts or any other matter contained in the Notice are 

requested to write to the Company at least 7 (Seven) days before the meeting so as to enable the 
Company to make available relevant information at the meeting. 
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14. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in demat mode 
are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN details to their respective Depository Participants. 
Members holding shares in physical mode can submit their PAN details to the Company’s Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agents, Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited, 6 Mangoe Lane, Kolkata – 700 001. 
 

15. Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has also mandated that for registration of transfer of 
securities, the transferee(s) as well as transferor(s) shall furnish a copy of their PAN Card to the 
Company for registration of transfer of securities. 
 

16. Details as required Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI( Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General 
Meeting, forms integral part of the notice. Requisite declarations/ consent have been received from the 
Directors for his/her appointment/re-appointment. 

 
17. a) In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of 

the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, and amendments made thereto, and  
Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
Company is pleased to provide the e-voting facility to members to exercise their right to vote on the 
resolutions proposed to be passed at the Annual General Meeting as stated in the Notice by electronic 
means from a place other than venue of the meeting i.e. remote e-voting. The facility of casting the votes 
by the members using an electronic voting system from a place other than venue of Annual General 
Meeting (remote e-voting) will be provided CDSL 

 
The detailed process for exercising the e-voting facility is enclosed and is being sent as a part of the 
Notice. Members are requested to carefully read the instructions of e-voting before exercising their 
vote. 
 

b) The e-voting facility will be made available during the following period: 
 

Commencement of e-voting: From 10:00 a.m. on Tuesday, 27th September, 2016  
 
End of e-voting: up to 5:00 p.m. on Thursday, 29th September, 2016  
 
At the end of remote e-voting period, the facility shall forthwith be blocked. 
 
Members’ holding shares either in physical or dematerialized mode as on the cut-off date (i.e. the 
record date) viz. Friday, 23rd September, 2016 may exercise their vote electronically.  

 
c) In case a person becomes a member of the Company after the dispatch of the Notice but on or before the 

cut-off date for e-voting i.e. Friday, 23rd September, 2016, he/she may write to the Registrar requesting 
for user id and password. 

 
d) Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a member, the member shall not be allowed to change it 

subsequently.  
 
e) Facility of voting through Ballot Paper shall also be made available at the meeting and the members 

attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right 
at the meeting. Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting shall not be allowed to vote again at 
the meeting. However, members may attend the meeting and participate in the discussions, if any. 

 
f) Members can opt for only one mode of voting, i.e. either by e-voting or voting at Annual General Meeting. 

In case members cast their vote through both the mode, e-voting shall prevail and vote cast at Annual 
General Meeting shall be invalid. 
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g)  The voting rights of the members shall be one vote per paid up equity share, registered in the name of the 
shareholders/beneficial owners as on the cut-off date (i.e. the record date) being Friday, 23rd September, 
2016. 

 
h)  A person who is not a member as on cut-off date should treat this notice for the information purpose only. 

 
i) The Board of Directors has appointed Ms. Premlata Soni, Practising Company Secretary, (Membership 

No. FCS: 4385), having its registered office at 55, Ezra Street, 2nd Floor, Room No. 4, Kolkata – 700 001, 
as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process (including the physical ballots received from members 
who don’t have access to the remote e-voting process) and voting at the AGM in a fair and transparent 
manner. 

 
j) The scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of meeting count the votes cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock 

the votes casted by remote e-voting in the presence of at least 2 (Two) witnesses not in employment of the 
Company and within a period not exceeding 3 days from the conclusion of the meeting submit a 
consolidated report of voting (e-voting & ballot) of the total votes cast in favour or against, to the 
Chairman of the meeting, or any person authorized by the Chairman to counter-sign the same. The 
Chairman of the meeting or the person authorized by the Chairman shall declare the results of the voting 
forthwith. 

 
k) The results of e-voting will be communicated to the Stock Exchange where equity shares of the Company 

is listed viz. The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited. Further, the results so declared along with the 
Scrutinizer’s Report shall also be placed on the website of the Company as well as on the website of CDSL 
immediately after declaration of results by the Chairman or any person authorized by him in writing. 

 
 

Registered Office:                      By Order of the Board 
3, Bentinck Street,                                                        For Chandi Steel Industries Limited 
Kolkata – 700 001            
                      Sd/- 
Place : Kolkata                                                                      Seema Chowdhury 
Date  :3rd September, 2016                             Company Secretary   
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Annexure to the Notice 
 
Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013: 
 
Item No. 4 
 
Ms. Swati Agarwal, is a commerce graduate from Shri Shikshayatan College, Kolkata and an Associate member of 
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). She possesses rich experience in handling Company law, 
SEBI  (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and  legal matters. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, appointed Ms. Swati Agarwal  (DIN – 07158355), as an Additional Director (Category – Non-
Executive Independent Director) of the Company with effect from 13th November, 2015, in terms of Sections 149 
and 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 to hold office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and further 
recommended her appointment based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as 
an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a period of 5 years from 
the date of her appointment, in terms of the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and all other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made therein (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment (s)thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015. Also, a notice in writing under Section 
160 of the Companies Act, 2013, has been received from a member proposing the candidature of Ms. Swati 
Agarwal for the office of an Independent Director of the Company. 
 

The Company has received consent in writing from Ms. Swati Agarwal to act as a Director of the Company along 
with the requisite disclosures and a declaration to the effect that she meets the criteria of independence as provided 
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013  
 
In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Swati Agarwal fulfils the conditions specified under the Companies Act, 2013 and 
rules made there under and Regulation 16(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 for her appointment as an Independent Director of the Company The Board considers that her 
association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to avail services of Ms. Swati Agarwal 
as an Independent Director. 
 

The Board of Directors, therefore, recommend the Resolution under item no. 4 to be passed as an Ordinary 
Resolution by the Members.  
 
Ms. Swati Agarwal and her relatives may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the proposed Resolution in so 
far as it relates to her own appointment. None of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives 
are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution. 
 

Item No. 5 
 
Shri Ashok Kumar Choudhary graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce (Hons.) degree holds expertise in the field 
of Accounts and Taxation and possesses a rich experience of over 20 years in various capacity.  
 
The Board of Directors of the Company, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, appointed Shri Ashok Kumar Choudhary (DIN – 07603658 ) as an Additional Director (Category – 
Non-Executive Independent Director) of the Company with effect from 1st September, 2016, in terms of Sections 
149 and 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 to hold office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and 
further recommended his appointment based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a period 
of 5 years from the date of his appointment, in terms of the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and all other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made therein (including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment (s)thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015. Also, a notice in writing under Section 
160 of the Companies Act, 2013, has been received from a member proposing the candidature of Shri Ashok 
Kumar Choudhary for the office of an Independent Director of the Company. 
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The Company has also received consent in writing from Shri Ashok Kumar Choudhary to act as a Director of the 
Company along with the requisite disclosures and a declaration to the effect that she meets the criteria of 
independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

In the opinion of the Board, Shri Ashok Kumar Choudhary fulfils the conditions specified under the Companies 
Act, 2013 and rules made there under and Regulation 16(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company. The Board 
considers that his association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to avail services of 
Shri Ashok Kumar Choudhary as an Independent Director. 
 
The Board of Directors, therefore, recommend the Resolution under item no. 5 to be passed as an Ordinary 
Resolution by the Members.  
 

Shri Ashok Kumar Choudhary and his relatives may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the proposed 
Resolution in so far as it relates to his own appointment. None of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution. 
 

Item No. 6 
 

Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit is a commerce graduate from Calcutta University and MBA (Finance) from ICFAI 
University. He has also completed “Industrial Accountant Plus” course from IA (Barrackpore). He possesses rich 
experience in the field of Accounts, Taxation and Finance sector. 
 

The Board of Directors of the Company, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, appointed Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit (DIN – 07603642), as an Additional Director (Category – Non-
Executive Independent Director) of the Company with effect from 1st September, 2016 in terms of Sections 149 
and 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 to hold office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and further 
recommended his appointment based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as 
an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a period of 5 years from 
the date of his appointment, in terms of the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and all other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made therein (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment (s)thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  
 

Also, a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, has been received from a member 
proposing the candidature of Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit for the office of an Independent Director of the Company. 
 

The Company has received consent in writing from Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit to act as a Director of the Company 
along with the requisite disclosures and a declaration to the effect that she meets the criteria of independence as 
provided under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
In the opinion of the Board, Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit fulfils the conditions specified under the Companies Act, 
2013 and rules made there under and Regulation 16(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company The Board 
considers that his association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to avail services of 
Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit as an Independent Director. 
 
The Board of Directors, therefore, recommend the Resolution under item no. 6 to be passed as an Ordinary 
Resolution by the Members.  
 
Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit and his relatives may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the proposed 
Resolution in so far as it relates to his own appointment. None of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution. 
 
Item No. 7 
 
On the basis of the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting 
held on 11th August, 2016, has approved the re-appointment of the Cost Auditors of the Company, Mondal & 
Associates, Proprietor Mr. Amiya Mondal, to conduct audit of the cost records of the Company and providing Cost  
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Audit Report and all such reports, annexures, records, documents etc., for the financial year 2016-17, that may be 
required to be prepared and submitted by the Cost Auditors under applicable statute at a consolidated remuneration 
of Rs. 20,000/- (excluding applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, if any). 
 

In terms of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be approved by the 
Board and subsequently be ratified by the members of the Company. 
 

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors 
of the Company for the Financial Year 2016 -17. 
 

The Board of Directors, therefore, recommend the Resolution under item no. 7 to be passed as an Ordinary 
Resolution by the members. 
 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution. 
 
 

Item No. 8 
 

The Company had received a purchase order for supply of Alloys Steels Round along with an advance payment. 
The Company on unable to execute the order due to some unavoidable circumstances approached the Client and 
given a proposal to issue Zero Coupon, Unsecured, Unlisted, Non-Convertible Debentures (herein referred to as 
‘Debentures’) at a face value of ₹   100/- per debenture,. The Client accepted the proposal of the Company for 
issuance of debentures in lieu of advance made. The Board of Directors are hereby seeking to convert the 
advance into 2,00,000 (Two Lakhs) Zero Coupon, Unsecured, Unlisted, Non-Convertible Debentures at a face 
value of ₹  100/- per debenture. 
 
The approval of the Members is sought for making the allotment of aforesaid Debentures. The said borrowing is 
within the limit as approved by the Members under Section 180(1) ( c) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

The Board of Directors, therefore, recommend the Resolution under item no. 8 to be passed as a Special 
Resolution by the Members. 
 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution. 
 

Item No. 9 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and amendments made thereto, from 
time to time, the Board can enter into specified Related Party Transactions in excess of the limits prescribed 
under the said rules, only with the Consent of the Members. Further, pursuant to Regulation 23 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obliagtions and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2016, the Company can enter into material 
related party transactions i.e. the transaction(s) to be entered into individually or taken together with previous 
transactions during a financial year, exceeding ten percent of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as 
per the last audited financial statements of the Company, only with the consent of the Members by means of an 
Ordinary Resolution. 

 

Further, pursuant to Regulation 23(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, all existing material related party contracts or arrangements as on that date which are likely to 
continue beyond 30th November, 2015, shall be placed for approval of the Members in the first General Meeting 
subsequent to 1st December, 2015. The Company has entered into certain material related party transactions with 
its related parties which are continuing beyond 30th November, 2015 and for which approval of the Members is 
sought by way of an Ordinary Resolution. 
 
The Company proposes to enter into transactions with its related parties, from time to time, subject to the 
approval of the Audit Committee and the Board, wherever required, on such terms and conditions as may be 
mutually agreed upon between the Company and its related parties within an annual limit and such transactions 
may qualify as material transactions. Details of the Related Parties are tabled herein below: 
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Name of the Related 
Party 

 

Name of the Director 
or Key Managerial 
Personnel who is 
related 

Nature of Relationship 

Jai Balaji Industries 
Limited (JBIL) 

Shri Sanjiv Jajodia 
Shri Rajiv Jajodia 
Shri Gourav Jajodia 
 

Shri Sanjiv Jajodia and Shri Rajiv Jajodia are Brothers and 
Shri Gourav Jajodia is Son of Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia, 
Managing Director of Chandi Steel Industries Limited and 
they along with their relatives more than 2 % of the paid-up 
share capital of JBIL. 

Jai Salasar Balaji 
Industries Pvt. Ltd. 
(JSBIPL) 

Shri Devendra Prasad 
Jajodia 

Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia is a Director and Member. 

Balaji Ispat Udyog 
(BIU) 

Shri Sanjiv Jajodia 
 

Shri Sanjiv Jajodia, Brother of Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia, 
Managing Director of Chandi Steel Industries Limited is a 
proprietor of the firm. 

 
1) Nature, Material Terms, monetary value, and particulars of the contract or arrangement: 

 

Nature of Contract/arrangement/transaction and estimated per annum monetary value of the same is stated 
in the resolution. 
 

2) Any other information relevant or important for the members to take decision: 
 

The Company en ters /proposes to enter into related party transactions with the Bodies Corporate as per the 
table above, on an arms length basis and in ordinary course of business with the intention to further the 
Company’s interest. Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to transactions entered into by 
the Company in its ordinary course of business and on an arms length basis. However as a matter of 
abundant precaution, the Board considers it suitable to take the consent of the members for the aforesaid 
related party transactions within the estimated limits.  

 
The Board of Directors, therefore, recommend the Resolution under item no. 9 to be passed as a Ordinary 
Resolution by the Members. 
 
Except the aforesaid Promoter Directors and their relatives (to the extent of their shareholding interest in the 
Company), no other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution. 
 
 
Registered Office:                      By Order of the Board 
3, Bentinck Street,                                                        For Chandi Steel Industries Limited 
Kolkata – 700 001            
                   Sd/-  
Place : Kolkata                                                                       Seema Chowdhury 
Date  : 3rd September, 2016                            Company Secretary   
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Annexure to the notice pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
Brief profile of Director Seeking Re-appointment at the ensuing Thirty Eighth Annual General Meeting 
 

Name of Director Shri Susanta Sarkar 

DIN 06449312 

Date of Birth 15th October, 1970 
 

Date of Appointment 19th November, 2012 
Qualification Higher Secondary, Draughtmanship (Mach. & 

Civil) 
Expertise in Specific functional area Central and Excise 

Membership of the Committees of the Board of 
Directors of the Company 

NIL 

Directorship held in any other listed Companies NIL 

Membership in the Committees of the Board of 
Directors of other Listed Entity in which he is a 
Director 

 

Nil 

No. of Equity Shares held in the Company NIL 

Inter-se Relationships between Director  None 
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Brief profile of Directors Seeking Appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting 
 

Name of Director Ms. Swati Agarwal 
 

Shri Ashok Kumar 
Choudhary 

Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit 

DIN 07158355 07603658 07603642 

Date of Birth 9th December, 1985 7th February, 1961 16th September, 1981 

Date of 
Appointment 

13th November, 2015 1st September, 2016 1st September, 2016 

Qualification 
 

B. Com (Hons.) and an 
Associate Member of 
the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of 
India (ICSI). 

B. Com (Hons) B. Com (Hons), MBA 
(Finance) from ICFAI 
University and “Industrial 
Accountant Plus” course 
from IA (Barrackpore)

Expertise in 
Specific functional 
areas 
 

Rich experience in 
handling Company 
Law, SEBI, SEBI 
(Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure 
Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and 
legal matters. 

Rich experience of over 20 
years in the field of 
Accounts and Taxation. 

Rich experience in the field  
of Accounts, Taxation  
and Finance sector. 
 

Membership of the 
Committees of the 
Board of Directors 
of the Company 

Audit Committee-
Chairman 
Nomination and 
Remuneration 
Committee- Chairman  
Stakeholders 
Relationship 
Committee-Chairman 
 

NIL NIL 

Directorship held 
in other Listed 
company 

Jai Balaji Industries 
Limited 

NIL NIL 

Membership in the 
Committees of the 
Board of Directors 
of other Listed 
Entity in which 
he/she is a Director 

Audit Committee-Jai 
Balaji Industries 
Limited- Member 
 
 

NIL NIL 

No. of Equity 
Shares held in the 
Company 

NIL NIL NIL 

Inter-se 
Relationships 
between Director 

None None None 
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Process and manner of e-voting  
 

A. In case of Members receiving Notice of the Annual General Meeting by email and who wish to vote 
using the e-voting facility: 
 
i) Email contains your user ID and password for e-Voting. Please note that this password is an initial password. 
 

ii) Log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com 
 

iii) Now click on “Shareholders” tab to cast your votes. 
 

iv) Now Enter your User ID   
 

For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
For Members holding shares in Physical Form: Members should enter Folio Number registered with the 
Company.  

 

v) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
 

vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier 
voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

 

vii) If you are a first time user, follow the steps given below: 
  

 For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

when prompted by the system while e-voting (applicable for both demat 
shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 
• Members who have not updated their PAN with the 

Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the first two 
letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in the 
PAN field. 

• In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable 
number of 0’s before the number after the first two characters of the 
name in CAPITAL letters. Eg: If your name is Ramesh Kumar with 
sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN field. 

Dividend  
Bank Details  
OR  
Date of Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) 
as recorded in your demat account or in the company records for the said 
demat account or folio. 
•  If the details are not recorded with the depository or company please 

enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field 
as mentioned in instruction (v). 

 

viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 
 
ix) Members holding shares in Physical form will then reach directly to the Company selection screen. 
 
x) Members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to 

mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also 
used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, 
provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share 
your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

 
Shareholders holding shares in demat form and have logged in for an earlier instance of eVoting and voted on 
www.evotingindia.com should use their existing login and password. Such shareholders who have already 
logged in earlier would be required to enter only the password after entering the user ID and characters 
displayed 
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xi) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions 
contained in this Notice. 

 
xii) Click on the EVSN for <Chandi Steel Industries Limited> to vote. 
 
xiii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 

“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to 
the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

 
xiv)   Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 
 
xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be 

displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” 
and accordingly modify your vote. 

 
xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
 
xvii) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 

Voting page. 
 
xviii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User ID and the image 

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 
 
xix) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android based 

mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phone users 
can download the app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively on or after 30th June, 
2016. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile. 

 
xx)   Note for Non-Individual Shareholders and Custodians:  
 

• Non-Individual Shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to 
log on to https://www.evotingindia.com. and register themselves as Corporates.  
 

• They should submit a scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.  

 

• After receiving the login details they have to create a compliance user who would be able to link the 
account(s) which they wish to vote on.  

 
• The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the 

accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  
 

• They should upload a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they 
have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify 
the same. 

 

B. In case of Members receiving Notice of the Annual General Meeting by post and who wish to vote using 
the e-voting facility: 
 

Please follow all steps from Sr. No. (ii) to Sl. No. (xx) above, to cast your vote. 
 
In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions 
(“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com  under help section or write an email to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. Or can contact at CDSL helpdesk: 18002005533. 
 
 
 



Chandi Steel Industries Limited 

 
 
Route Map to the AGM Venue 
 

3, Bentinck Street, 
Kolkata – 700 001 

 

 
 



 
 
Chandi Steel Industries Limited 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
Dear Members 
 
Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the Thirty Eighth Annual Report along with the summary of the Audited 
Financial Statement of your Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2016. 

  
FINANCIAL RESULTS      

                                                                     (` in Lacs) 
Particulars Financial Year ended  

 31st March, 2016 
Financial  Year ended  

  31st March, 2015 
Revenue from Operations (Net) and Other Income 8,460.30 6,083.26
Less: Expenses (other than Finance costs & Depreciation) 7,549.47 5,418.78
         Finance costs 799.97 562.72
         Depreciation  81.12 73.43
Total Expenses 8,430.56 6,054.93
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and 
tax 

29.74 28.33

Less: Exceptional items - -
Profit/(Loss) before extraordinary items and tax 29.74 28.33
Less: Extraordinary items - -
Profit before Tax (PBT) 29.74 28.33
Less: Current Tax Expenses (Net) 
          Deferred Tax 

12.27 
(1.69)  

9.67 
8.55 

Total Tax Expense 10.58 18.22
Profit after Tax (PAT) 19.16 10.11
Earnings per share (excluding extraordinary items) (of Rs. 
10/- each) 
Basic and Diluted 

 
 

0.18 

 
 

0.10
 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS 
 
The net revenue from operations and other income stands at ` 8,460.30 lacs in 2015-16 in comparison to ` 6,083.36 
lacs in 2014-15 respectively and showed a growth of 39.07%. The Profit before Tax (PBT) for the year increased to  
` 29.74 lacs as compared to  ` 28.33 lacs in the previous year. The net profit of your Company for the year 2015-16 

has been positively impacted on account of saleable steel production i.e. ` 19.16 lacs as compared to ` 10.11 lacs in 
the previous year. 

 
Your Company is focused to balance cost, quality and aspiration for consumer affordability at every price point. The 
Company has preserved an amount of ` 19.16 Lacs in the Statement of Profit and Loss and thus no sum have been 
sent to the General Reserves.  

 
In aspect of the uncertain market situations, ability of the Company to act viably and profitably and in lieu of 
requirement of funds for total fixed expenses and operations of the Company, your Directors do not recommend a 
dividend for the financial year 2015-16. 
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY  

 
There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company which have 
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date 
of the report. 
CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 

 
During the year there was no change in the nature of business of the Company. 
 
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES OR JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES 
  

As on the date of reporting, your Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint venture companies.  
 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
Appointment 
 
During the period under review, the Board of Directors of your Company based on the recommendation of the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee appointed Smt. Swati Agarwal (DIN : 07158355) as an Additional Director 
(Category : Non-Executive Independent Director) not liable to retire by rotation w.e.f. 13th November, 2015 pursuant 
to the provisions of 149 and 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.  
 
Pursuant to recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Section 149 and 161(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and rules made there under and Regulation 17(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board have also appointed Shri Ashok Kumar Choudhary (DIN: 07603658) and 
Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit (DIN: 07603642) as Additional Directors (Category: Non-Executive Independent Director) 
w.e.f 1st September, 2016. 
 

The Company has received notice in writing from Members in terms of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 with 
respect to the above appointments. The Board of Directors hereby recommend the appointment of Ms. Swati Agarwal 
(DIN: 07158355), as an independent director not liable to retire by rotation for a term of five years w.e.f                 
13th November, 2015. Further, the Board also recommend the appointment of Shri Ashok Kumar Choudhary             
(DIN : 07603658) and Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit (DIN 07603642), as independent directors for a term of five years 
w.e.f 1st September, 2016, not liable to retire by rotation, in the ensuing Annual General Meeting based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company. 
  
Re-appointment 
 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of the Articles of 
Association of the Company, Shri Susanta Sarkar (DIN – 06449312) retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The proposal regarding the re-appointment of 
the aforesaid director sought members approval. The Board of Directors recommend his re-appointment.   
 

A brief resume of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting is 
incorporated in the Notice calling the said meeting. 
 

Resignations  
 

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board and on ratification by the 
Members at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 29th September, 2015, Ms. Ekta Agarwal      
(DIN : 07158376), in respect of whom the Company had received a notice in writing from a Member in terms of 
Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to 
retire by rotation, to hold office for a term of five years pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made therein read with Schedule IV to the Companies 
Act, 2013. Further, Ms. Ekta Agarwal tendered resignation form the post of directorship of the Company w.e.f. 12th 
November, 2015.  
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Pursuant to Section 168 of the Companies Act, 2013 Shri Sanjiv Jajodia (DIN : 00036339), Shri Gourav Jajodia (DIN : 
00028560) , Non-Executive Directors of the Company, Shri Anshuman Dalmia (DIN : 00061573), Shri Mahesh Kumar 
Keyal (DIN : 00079253), Independent Directors of the Company resigned from the post of directorship of the 
Company from the closing hours of 31st March, 2016. Further, Shri Vishal Bagri (DIN: 00078949) Independent 
Director of the Company resigned from the post of directorship of the Company w.e.f 15th April, 2016. 
 
Your Directors would like to record the appreciation of the above directors for the services rendered by them during 
their respective tenures into the Company.  

  
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 
 
As on date of reporting, Shri Vijay Singh resigned from the Post of Chief Financial Officer w.e.f 24th May, 2016 and 
Shri Tushar Kanti Sarkar was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer thereby designated as the Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company w.e.f 24th May, 2016.  
 

The details of the remuneration paid to the Key Managerial Personnel appointed by your Company in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 forms a part of the Annual Report.  
 
STATEMENT OF DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS  
 
Your Company has received necessary declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company that they meet 
the criteria of independence as laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedules and rules made 
thereunder, and Regulation 16(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
erstwhile Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and the same has been placed before the Board and taken on record.  
 
Formal Appointment letter of independent directors of the Company stating the terms and conditions of their 
appointment in line with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable clauses of the Listing 
Agreement/ SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, has been issued to the 
independent directors of the Company and is also hosted on the website of the Company under the weblink 
“http://www.jaibalajigroup.com/chandi‐steel/letter‐appointment‐swati‐agarwal.pdf”, 
“http://www.jaibalajigroup.com/chandi‐steel/letter‐appointment‐ashok‐kumar‐choudhary.pdf”   
 and “http://www.jaibalajigroup.com/chandi‐steel/letter‐appointment‐sumit‐kumar‐rakshit.pdf”. 

 
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
 
The Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has 
enhanced the role of directors and thus it requires the Board to be more engaged, more knowledgeable and more 
effective. 
 
With a view to improving and effectiveness, the board of directors of your Company are increasingly deploying board 
performance evaluation tools to identify areas of improvement benchmarking themselves against leading practices. 
Appraisal of the Board’s Performance includes fixing up individual and collective roles and responsibilities of its 
directors.  
 
During the year under review, the Board Evaluation process was undertaken on 11th February, 2016 wherein the 
Board carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance. The performance of the Board and 
individual directors was evaluated by the Board seeking inputs from all the Directors. The performance of the 
Committees was evaluated by the Board seeking inputs from the Committee members. A separate meeting of 
Independent directors was conducted for reviewing the performance of executive and non-executive directors as a 
whole. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company reviewed the Board Evaluation process. 
 
The criteria for performance evaluation of the Board included aspects like Board composition and structure, 
effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning etc. The criteria for performance evaluation of the 
Committees included aspects like composition of the Committees, effectiveness of Committee meetings etc. In 
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addition, the Chairperson was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role. As per the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the formal annual 
evaluation process and details thereof is stated in the Corporate Governance report which forms a part of the Annual 
Report.  
 
FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME  FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
The familiarization program was imparted to the Independent Directors by the Company to state their roles, rights, 
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the 
Company and related matters. 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
Company should familiarise the independent directors through various programmes about the Company. During the 
year under review, a familiarization programme was conducted with the presence of all Independent Directors of the 
Company. The details of the familiarisation programmes are available at the website of the Company at: 
“http://www.jaibalajigroup.com/chandi-steel/familiarisation-programme-details.pdf”. 

 
POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION 

 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 and 134(3)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules 
thereunder and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 your company has formulated a ‘Nomination and Remuneration’ Policy which 
includes the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director, sets out the terms 
and conditions for appointment and remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. 
The said Policy has been hosted on the Company’s website under the weblink “http://www.jaibalajigroup.com/chandi-
steel/nomination-remuneration-policy.pdf". The same is attached as    “Annexure – B” and forms integral part of this 
Report. 
 
The Board has also devised a policy on diversity of Board of Directors in compliance with Regulation 19 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 which emphasizes on having a diverse Board to 
enhance the quality of the performance of the Board of Directors of the Company. The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee reviews the functioning and implementation of these policies. 

 
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD HELD DURING THE YEAR  
 
It is to be noted that your Company followed the prescribed rules and provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Secretarial Standard – 1 (SS-1) as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India effective from 1st July, 2015 
and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as effective from 1st December, 
2015. 
 
During the financial year 2015-16, 9 (Nine) Board Meetings were convened and the intervening gap between two 
consecutive meetings did not exceed 120 days. The dates of the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company 
convened were 30th April, 2015; 26th May, 2015; 13th August, 2015; 31st August, 2015; 26th September, 2015;           
6th November, 2015; 13th November, 2015, 11th February, 2016 and 31st March, 2016. 
 
The detail and the number of board meetings attended by each Director during the financial year 2015-16 has been 
provided in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this report. 
 
BOARD COMMITTEES 
 
In compliance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 your company has three board level committees comprising of Audit Committee, 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Details of changes, workings, 
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scope, constitution and terms of reference forms a part of Corporate Governance report annexed to the report. Further, 
composition of the various committees of the Board is also hosted on the website of the Company under the weblink 
“http://www.jaibalajigroup.com/chandi-steel/composition-of-various-committees-of-board-of-directors.pdf”. 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

As on 31st March, 2016, the Audit Committee comprises of Shri Anshuman Dalmia (Non-Executive Independent 
Director), the Chairman of the Committee, Shri Mahesh Kumar Keyal (Non-Executive Independent Director), and Shri 
Vishal Bagri (Non-Executive Independent Director). The Board has accepted all recommendations made by the Audit 
Committee during the year.    

Shri Anshuman Dalmia and Shri Mahesh Kumar Keyal has resigned from the Board of Directors from the closing 
hours of 31st March, 2016. Thereafter, Smt. Swati Agarwal was designated as the Chairman of the Audit Committee 
w.e,f 1st April, 2016.  Shri Ashok Kumar Choudhary (Non-Executive Independent Director) and Shri Sumit Kumar 
Rakshit (Non-Executive Independent Director) were appointed in the Board w.e.f and were designated as members of  
the Audit Committee w.e.f 1st September, 2016. 
 

Other details about the Audit Committee and other Committees of the Board are provided in the Report on Corporate 
Governance forming part of this Annual Report. 

 
WHISTLE BLOWER AND VIGIL MECHANISM  
 
The Company has also adopted and formulated a formal mechanism for all directors, employees and vendors of the 
Company termed vigil mechanism for conducting the affairs in a fair and transparent manner by adopting highest 
standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behaviour. It requires every Director or employees to 
swiftly report to the management any actual or possible violation of the code or any event wherein he or she becomes 
aware of that which could affect the business or reputation of the Company. The Policy safeguards the whistle blower 
to report concerns or grievances and also provides direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The said 
policy has been made available on the website of the Company viz. “www.jaibalajigroup.com” under the weblink 
“http://www.jaibalajigroup.com/chandi-steel/whistle-blower-policy.pdf” 
 
Your Company annually reviews any instances of fraud and mismanagement inside the affairs of the Company. 
During the year 2015-16, there has been no such instances. Further, there has been no change to the whistle blower 
policy during the financial year 2016-17.  
 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 
Pursuant to Section 134(3) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors to the best of their 
knowledge and ability confirm: 
 

i. In the preparation of annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2016, the applicable accounting 
standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

 
ii. We have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and made 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as on 31st March, 2016 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; 

 
iii. We have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;  

 
iv. The annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2016, have been prepared on a going concern 

basis; 
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v. Internal financial controls to be followed by the Company were laid down and that such internal financial 
controls are adequate and were operating effectively; 

 
vi. Proper systems were devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 

systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
 
The Company has formulated a policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions. The Policy is also available on the 
Company’s Website “www.jaibalajigroup.com” under the weblink “http://www.jaibalajigroup.com/chandi-
steel/related-party-policy.pdf.” The policy intends to ensure that proper reporting, approval and disclosure processes 
are in place for all transactions between the Company and its related parties. All the contacts/ 
arrangements/transactions entered into with Related Parties during the financial year 2015 -16 as defined under the 
Companies Ac, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 were in the 
ordinary course of business and on arms length basis. 
 
It is to be stated that the Company has entered into certain related party transactions as defined under Section 188(1) 
of the companies Act, 2013 and material related party transactions exceeding ten percent of the annual turnover as per 
the last audited financial statements. Approval for these related party transactions as stated above and defined under 
Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange have been sought vide special resolution passed at the last Annual 
General Meeting of the Company held on 29th September, 2015. Further pursuant to Regulation 23 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, approval of the members sought to be taken in 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting for material related party transactions. 
 
All related party transactions are placed quarterly before the Audit Committee for consideration and approval. Further, 
prior Omnibus Approval has been obtained from the Audit Committee of the Company at the committee meeting held 
on 13th August, 2015 in respect of related party transactions whose value does not exceed one crore per transaction.  
 
All Related Party Transactions in accordance with Accounting Standard 18 are disclosed are annexed into the notes to 
financial statements forming part of the Annual Report. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties 
along with the justification for entering into such contract or arrangement is annexed as “Annexure A” in form         
AOC – 2 and forms a part of Board’s Report.  

 
RISK MANGEMENT  
 
The resources sector is currently in the midst of correction, with an extended period of lower and volatile commodity 
prices impacting earnings balance sheets and investor perceptions. Your Company has in place a robust risk 
management framework which identifies and evaluates business risks and oppurtunities. The Company is exposed to 
inherent uncertainities owing to the sectors in which it operates. The process of risk management in the Company 
identifies inherent risks in its operations and records residual risk after taking specific risk mitigation steps. The 
Company has identified and categorised risks in the areas of operations, finance, marketing, regulatory compliances, 
tax regime, and compliances sector. To have better corporate governance, your company has also considered various 
important risk factors affecting the organisation such as health and safety of all employees and workers, environmental 
laws,  regulations and standards. 
 
The Company focuses on ensuring that risks are mitigated on a regular basis and have also in place a Risk Management 
Policy which is periodically reviewed by the Board. The Policy envisages to minimise adverse impact on the business 
objective and enhance the Company’s competitive advantage. Your Company targets management at all levels while 
identifying, assessing, reviewing and mitigating risks. The said policy is also available on the website of the Company 
“www.jaibalajigroup.com” under the weblink “http://www.jaibalajigroup.com/chandi-steel/risk-
management-policy.pdf”. 
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INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL  
 
A vigorous system of internal control, which is compatible with the range and nature of its business, forms an integral 
part of the Company’s Corporate Governance policies. The Board has devised systems and procedures for ensuing the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and 
the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures. 
We, at Chandi Steel has an internal audit function that inculcates best standards and practices. The scope of work, 
authority and resources of Internal Audit are regularly reviewed by the Audit Committee and its work is supported by 
the services of accountancy firms. The Internal Audit conducted also provides assurance to the Board on the 
effectiveness of relevant internal controls. 
 
The Audit Committee of the Company has Independent Directors forming a majority to maintain its objectivity and 
the committee regularly reviews the adequacy of the internal control system to ensure that it remains effective and 
aligned with the business requirements. The Committee also calls for comments of the internal and statutory auditors 
about the Company’s internal audit and scope of audit. During the year under review, such controls were tested and no 
material weaknesses in the operations were discovered. 

 
AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
Statutory Auditors 

 
M/s. Rashmi & Co., Chartered Accountants, who were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of your Company in the 
last Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 29th September, 2015 and hold office up to the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting, offer themselves for re- appointment. Your Company has received a consent from M/s. Rashmi & 
Co., Chartered Accountants that their re-appointment, if made, will be within the criteria provided under Section 139 
and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of your Company recommend 
the re-appointment of M/s. Rashmi & Co., Chartered Accountants, as the Auditors of your Company at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting for conducing the audit of financial statements of the Company for the financial year        
2016-17 on such remuneration as may be fixed subsequently by the Board of Directors.. Accordingly, requisite 
resolution for the approval of members forms part of the notice convening the Annual General Meeting. 

 
The Auditors’ Report to the shareholders for the financial year 2016-17 does not contain any qualification, 
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. Comments/Qualification of the Auditors in their report and the notes 
forming part of the Accounts are self-explanatory and further do not call for any clarification or comments. During 
the year under review, the Auditors had not reported any matter under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
therefore no detail is required to be disclosed under 134(3)(ca) of the Act.  

 
Cost Auditors 
 
Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 
as amended form time to time, your Company is required to get its cost accounting records audited by the Cost 
Auditor. 
 
Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee , the Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s. 
Mondal & Associates, Proprietor Mr. Amiya Mondal, Cost Accountants, for audit of cost records of the Company for 
the financial year 2016-17 at a consolidated remuneration of Rs.20,000/- (excluding applicable taxes) and 
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses which shall be subject to ratification by the Members at the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting of your Company. Your Company has filed the cost audit report for the Financial Year        
2014-15 with the Registrar of Companies, Ministry of Corporate Affairs in the prescribed form. 
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Internal Auditor 
 
In line with the requirements of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder M/s. D. Sikaria & 
Co., Chartered Accountants were appointed as the Internal Auditor at the meeting of the Board of Directors held on 
30th May, 2016 for the Financial Year 2016-17 to conduct internal audit of the functions and activities of the 
Company. The Audit Committee of the Company periodically reviews the Internal Audit Report and checks for any 
findings and follow up thereon.  
 
 
Secretarial Auditor 
 

Ms. Priti Todi, Practising Company Secretary, Partner of P.S. & Associates, was appointed to conduct the secretarial 
audit of the Company as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, and rules made thereunder. The 
Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 as prescribed, issued by Ms. Priti Todi is annexed as “Annexure C” and 
forms a part of this report.  
 

The secretarial audit report to the shareholders for the year under review does not contain any qualifications, 
reservations and adverse remark or disclaimer. The observations made in the secretarial auditor’s report are self 
explanatory and therefore do not call for further elucidation. 
 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules 2014, an extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is annexed as 
“Annexure D” and forms part of this report. 
 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS  
 

During the year under review, your Company has not made any investments pursuant to Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Particulars of Loans and Guarantees made during the year in accordance with Section 186 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 are contained in the notes to the financial statement. 
 
DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE 
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES 
 
The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as provisions of  
Section 134 and 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) 2014 and is not applicable for the Company during the financial year under review. 

 

DEPOSITS 
 

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted/received any deposits from the public within the ambit 
of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. Further, no 
amount of deposit remained unpaid or unclaimed at the end of the year i.e. as on 31st March, 2016. Subsequently, no 
default has been made in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon during the year. 
 
SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE COMPANY 
 
There were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals during the year under 
review impacting the going concern status and the future operations of the Company. 

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
In order to maximise shareholder value on a sustained basis, your Company has been constantly assessing and 
benchmarking itself with well-established Corporate Governance Practices besides complying with the statutory 
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compliances. Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a separate Corporate Governance Report along with the compliance certificate on 
corporate governance issued by M/s. Rashmi & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company forms 
part of the Annual Report.  

 
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report as stipulated under Regulation 34(e) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, forms a part of the Annual Report. 
 
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
 
Your Company endeavours to provide equal opportunity and key positions to women professionals. As per the 
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and  Redressal) Act, 2013 and 
rules made thereunder your company has formulated an Internal Complaints Committee having designated members to 
redress complaints against Sexual Harassment. During the year under review, there were no complaints reported 
against pertaining to Sexual Harassment. 

 
PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
 
The relevant information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo as 
stipulated in  Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is 
annexed herewith as “Annexure E” forming part of Annual Report. 

 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND OTHER RELATED DISCLOSURES 

 
The information required to be disclosed in the Directors’ Report pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is 
annexed as “Annexure F” forming part of this report. 
 
However, your Company does not have any employee whose details are required to be disclosed under Rule 5(2) and 
5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 
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“Annexure –A” 

 
Form AOC – 2 

 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto 
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: 
 
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended 31st 
March, 2016, which were not at arm’s length basis.  
 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis 

 
Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis for the year ended 
31st March, 2016 are as follows: 
 
Name(s) of the related 
party and nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/arrange
ments/transactions 
 

Duration of 
the contracts 
/arrangements
/transactions 

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions 
including the 
value, if any 

Date(s) of 
approval by 
the Board, if 
any 

Amount 
paid as 
advances, 
if any  
(` in Lacs) 

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) 
Jai Balaji Industries 
Limited (JBIL) 
(Shri Sanjiv Jajodia & 
Shri Gourav Jajodia are 
Common Promoter 
Directors & Shri Sanjiv 
Jajodia holds, along with 
his relatives, more than 
2% of the paid-up share 
capital of CSIL) 

Purchase/sale of 
goods/products in 
ordinary course of 
business  

Ongoing Based on transfer 
pricing guidelines 

15.04.2004 Nil 

Jai Salasar Balaji 
Industries Private 
Limited (JSBIPL) 
(Shri Devendra Prasad 
Jajodia is a Common 
Promoter Director & 
Member, Shri Sanjiv 
Jajodia and Shri Rajiv 
Jajodia, brother of Shri 
Devendra Prasad Jajodia 
are Members) 

Purchase/sale of 
goods/products in 
ordinary course of 
business  

Ongoing Based on transfer 
pricing guidelines 

15.04.2004 Nil 
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       “Annexure-B” 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 
 

PREFACE 
 

Human Resource occupies an important place in the organisation’s growth. Chandi Steel Industries 

Limited (“the Company”) has been built on the active assistance, commitment, dedication, hard work and 

loyalty of its employees. The Board is committed to transparent, fair and sound policies for determining 

appropriate remuneration at all levels of the Company. 
 

As we are growing, personal and professional development of the directors and employees becomes 

important to motivate them as also to ensure efficient functioning of the organisation. 
 

VISION 
 
Effective people management for creating competitive advantage for all stakeholders and creating a 

transparent system for determining the appropriate level of remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel (KMP) and other senior management employees. 
 

OBJECTIVE 
 

 To attract, nurture and retain the best talent by inculcating a culture of learning, performing, 

developing creativity and teamwork; 

 To ensure reasonable remuneration to the Directors, KMP and other employees so as to motivate 

them of the quality required to run the Company successfully; 

 To ensure that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets  appropriate 

performance benchmarks. 
 

MONITORING OF THE POLICY 
 

The implementation of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy shall be monitored by the Nomination 

and Remuneration committee of the Board constituted as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

PURPOSE OF THE COMMITTEE 
 

 Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 

director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, 

key managerial personnel and other employees; 

 Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of 

directors; 
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 Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors; 

 Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 

management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their 

appointment and removal. 

 Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the 

report of performance evaluation of independent directors. 

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMITTEE 

Nomination 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall identify potential candidates with appropriate 

qualification, knowledge, expertise and experience. 
 

When considering candidates, the Committee strives to achieve a balance of knowledge, experience and 

accomplishment such that the Company reflects a diversity of talent, age, skill, expertise and perspective. 

While evaluating a Director, KMP or other senior management employees for recommending to the 

Board, the Committee shall take into consideration various criteria that are in the best interests of the 

Company and its stakeholders, some of which are given hereunder: 

 
 Educational qualifications and experience of the candidate so as to be in terms with the applicable 

laws, rules, regulations as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013, listing agreement and other 

applicable acts; 

 Willingness of a person to act as such; 
 

 The candidate should reflect the highest standards of integrity, ethics and character, and value such 

qualities in other; 

 The candidate should have the ability to devote sufficient time to the business and affairs of the 

Company; 

 Demonstrate the capacity and desire to represent, fairly and equally, the best interests of the 

Company's stockholders as a whole; 
 

 Access the present as well as future needs of the Company. Further, while nominating Directors, it 

must be ensured that the Board is structured in a way that: 

 it has proper understanding of and expertise to deal with the present as well as emerging 

business issues 
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 exercises independent judgement 

 encourage enhanced performance of the business as a whole. 
 
Accordingly, the process of the Committee for identifying nominees shall reflect the Company’s practice 

of re-nominating incumbent directors and employees who continue to satisfy the Committee’s criteria, 

whom the Committee believes to continue to make important contributions towards the growth, reputation 

and well being of the Company as a whole and who consents to continue their service with the Company. 

 
Further, in addition to the above criteria, the appointment of Independent Directors of the Company shall 

also be guided by the following Terms and Conditions in compliance with schedule IV to the Companies 

Act, 2013 which is enclosed as Annexure ‘A’ to this Policy. 

 
 The appointment of Independent Directors shall be independent of the company management. While 

selecting Independent Directors the Board shall ensure that there is appropriate balance of skills, 

experience and knowledge in the Board so as to enable the Board to discharge its functions and 

duties effectively; 

 
 The appointment of Independent Directors shall be approved at the meeting of the Shareholders; 

 
 The appointment of Independent Directors shall be formalised through a letter of appointment stating 

the requisite details as per the requirements of schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013; 

 
 The Independent Directors shall be appointed for a fixed term of upto five years or such lesser term 

as may be decided mutually between the Board and the Directors and shall be eligible for re-

appointment for a further term of upto five years on passing a special resolution by the Company. 

Further, no Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms. However, 

they shall be eligible for re-appointment after the expiration of cooling period of three years of 

ceasing to become an Independent Director; 

 
 The Independent Directors shall be responsible for complying with the duties as specified under 

section 166 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, their liabilities shall also be limited to the 

respective provisions of the Companies, 2013 and rules made there under; 

 Independent Directors shall be expected to ensure compliance with the Code of Conduct as laid 

down by the Company; 
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Remuneration 

 
The committee shall: 

 ensure that the compensation to the Board, KMP and other senior management employees is 

reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate quality directors and KMPs; 

 approve any significant changes in the executive director’s contract; 
 

 determine payment of sitting fees, if any payable for directors for attending meetings of the Board; 

 ensure that there is balance between fixed pay and incentive based pay (if any) in the remuneration to 

be paid the Directors, KMPs and other senior management employees. 

Directors Remuneration 

The Company may pay remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and allowances (fixed component) and 

commission (variable component) to Managing and Whole-time Directors. Salary shall be paid within the 

range approved by the Shareholders. Commission, if any, shall be calculated with reference to net profits 

of the Company in a particular financial year and shall be determined by the Board of Directors at the end 

of the financial year based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 

subject to overall ceilings stipulated in Sections 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Senior Management Remuneration 

The salary of other senior management employees shall be competitive and based on the individual’s 

qualification, experience, responsibilities and performance and shall be governed by the HR policy of the 

Company. 





 

 
 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 1992 and Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and 
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act 
and dealing with client; 

 
2. Provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,1992 (SEBI Act) were not applicable to 
the Company under the financial year under report: 
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme 

and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; 
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 

Securities) Regulations, 2008; 
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2009; and 
e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 

Regulations, 1998; 
 
3. The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing Alloy & Non-Alloy Steel 

Round, Bar & Flat, Alloy & Non-Alloy Steel Scrap. No Act specifically for the 
aforesaid businesses is/are applicable to the Company. 

 
4. We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
(ii)  The Listing Agreement(s) entered into by the Company with the Calcutta Stock 

Exchange Limited, as applicable upto 30th November 2015. Thereafter, with the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, w.e.f 1st December, 2015.  

 
5. As per the information and explanations provided by the Company, its officers, 

agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we 
report that the provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the 
Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of: 
(i)  External Commercial Borrowings were not attracted to the Company under the 

financial year under report; 
(ii)  Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) were not attracted to the company under the 

financial year under report; 
(iii)  Overseas Direct Investment by Residents in Joint Venture / Wholly Owned 

Subsidiary abroad were not attracted to the company under the financial year 
under report. 

 



 

 
 

6. During the financial year under report, the Company has complied with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., 
mentioned above.   

 
7. As per the information and explanations provided by the company, its officers, agents 

and authorised representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we report that 
the Company has not made any GDRs/ADRs or any Commercial Instrument under 
the financial year under report. 

 
8. We have relied on the information and representation made by the Company and its 

Officers for systems and mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under 
other applicable Acts, Laws, and Regulations to the Company. 

 
9. We further report that: 

(a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance 
of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. 
The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of 
the Act. 
 

(b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda 
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a 
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 
meeting. 
 

10. We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 
 

For PS & Associates  
 

 

 

(Priti Todi) 
Partner 
C.P.No.: 7270, ACS: 14611 

Place : Kolkata 
Date : 20th July, 2016 

 
 

 



"Annexure - D"

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. 
No. 

Name and Description of main products/ 
services

1 Steel

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES –

Sl. 
No. Name and Address of the Company CIN/ GLN

Holding/ 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of shares 
held

Applicable 
section

NIL

24103

v) Address of the Registered office and contact 
details 

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of 
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any 

Email: mdpldc@yahoo.com

Phone: (91) (33) 2248 8173 / 9808
Fax: (91) (33) 2243 0021
Email: cschandisteel@jaibalajigroup.com
Website: www.jaibalajigroup.com

Form No. MGT-9

vi) Whether listed company - Yes / No 

NIC Code of the Product/ service % to total turnover of the 
Company

95.29%

Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited

Yes (Listed with The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited)

Chandi Steel Industries Limited

Public Limited Company Limited by Shares

3, Bentinck Street, Kolkata - 700 001                                                                                    

96, Mangoe Lane, 2nd Floor, Kolkata - 700 001
Phone: (91) (33) 2243 5029 / 5809

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

L13100WB1978PLC031670
09.09.1978

i) CIN:- 

ii) Registration Date 

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management 

as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016

iii) Name of the Company 

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company 



Category of Shareholders

Demat Physical Total
% of Total 
Shares Demat Physical Total

% of Total 
Shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF               5,039,998  0 5,039,998               47.82 5,039,998               0 5,039,998              47.82 0.00
b) Central Govt
c) State Govt(s)
d) Bodies Corp. 700                          0 700                            0.01 700                            0 700                           0.01 0.00
e) Banks/Fi
f) Any other
Sub‐total (A)(1) 5,040,698              0 5,040,698               47.82 5,040,698               0 5,040,698              47.82 0.00

(2) Foreign
a) NRIs ‐ Individuals
b) Other ‐ Individuals
c) Bodies Corp.
d) Banks/FI
e) Any other
Sub‐total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Total shareholding of Promoter 
(A)=(A)(1)+(A)(2) 5,040,698              0 5,040,698               47.82 5,040,698               0 5,040,698              47.82 0.00

B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks/FI
c)Central Govt
d) State Govt(s)
e) Venture Capital Funds
f) Insurance Companies
g) FIIs
h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds
i) Others (specify)

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category‐wise Share Holding

No of Shares held at the  beginning of the year [As on 01‐April‐
2015]

No of Shares held at the end of the year [As on 31‐March‐2016]
% change 
during the 
Year 



Category of Shareholders

Demat Physical Total
% of Total 
Shares Demat Physical Total

% of Total 
Shares

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category‐wise Share Holding

No of Shares held at the  beginning of the year [As on 01‐April‐
2015]

No of Shares held at the end of the year [As on 31‐March‐2016]
% change 
during the 
Year 

Sub‐total(B)(1):‐ 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
2. Non‐Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian 5,174,100              58,300           5,232,400               49.64 5,174,100               58,300            5,232,400              49.64 0.00
ii) Overseas
b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders holding nominal 
share capital upto Rs. 1 lakh 10,702                    149,900        160,602                   1.52 10,702                     149,900          160,602                  1.52 0.00
ii) Individual shareholders holding nominal 
share capital in excess of  Rs. 1 lakh

106,300                 0 106,300                   1.01 106,300                   0 106,300                  1.01 0.00
c) Others (Specify)
Non Resident Indians
Qualified Foreign Investor
Custodian of Enemy Property
Foreign Nationals
Clearing Members 
Trusts
Foreign Bodies‐D R 
Sub‐total(B)(2):‐ 5,291,102              208,200        5499302 52.18 5,291,102               208,200          5,499,302              52.18 0.00

Total Public Shareholding (B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) 5,291,102              208,200        5499302 52.18 5,291,102               208,200          5,499,302              52.18 0.00
C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & 
ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) 10,331,800           208,200        10,540,000             100.00 10,331,800             208,200          10,540,000            100.00 0.00



(ii)       Shareholding of Promoters

No. of shares % of total 
Shares of the 
company

% of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total shares

No. of shares % of total 
Shares of the 
company

% of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total shares

% change in share 

holding during the 

year
1 SANJIV JAJODIA 1,447,498                   13.73 0.00 1,447,498            13.73 0.00 0.00
2 GAURAV JAJODIA 600,000                       5.69 0.00 600,000               5.69 0.00 0.00
3 SANGEETA JAJODIA 600,000                       5.69 0.00 600,000               5.69 0.00 0.00
4 AASHISH JAJODIA  556,500                       5.28 0.00 556,500               5.28 0.00 0.00
5 KANCHAN JAJODIA 511,500                       4.85 0.00 511,500               4.85 0.00 0.00
6 ADITYA JAJODIA 454,500                       4.31 0.00 454,500               4.31 0.00 0.00
7 RAJIV JAJODIA 423,000                       4.01 0.00 423,000               4.01 0.00 0.00
8 DEVENDRA PRASAD JAJODIA 300,000                       2.85 0.00 300,000               2.85 0.00 0.00
9 SHASHI JAJODIA 147,000                       1.39 0.00 147,000               1.39 0.00 0.00
10 SHRI SANKATMOCHAN STEEL PRIVATE LIMITED  400                              0.00 0.00 400                       0.00 0.00 0.00
11 SHRI KESHRINANDAN TRADE PRIVATE LIMITED 300                              0.00 0.00 300                       0.00 0.00 0.00
17 Total               5,040,698  47.82 0.00        5,040,698  47.82 0.00 0.00

(iii)       Change in Promoters' Shareholding (Please specify, if there is no change)

No. of shares
% of total 

Shares of the 
company

Date Reason No. of Shares No. of shares
% of total Shares 
of the company

Sl. No.

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the Year

Change during the year 

Name of the PromoterSl. No.

Shareholding at the beginning of the Year as on 
01.04.2015

shareholding at the end of the Year as on 
31.03.2016

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

Shareholder's Name

During the Financial Year 2015‐16, there has been no change in the shareholding of the Promoter/Promoter Group of the Company.



No. of shares

% of total 
Shares of the 
company Date Reason No. of Shares No. of shares

% of total Shares 
of the company

1 BHAVSAGAR VYAPAAR PRIVATE LIMITED
At the beginning of the year 507,300                       4.81

At the End of the year 507,300               4.81
2 UMANG WEBTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

At the beginning of the year 502,700                       4.77

At the End of the year 502,700               4.77
3 NAYAN IMPEX PRIVATE LIMITED

At the beginning of the year 500,000                       4.74

At the end of the year 500,000               4.74
4 DARSHAN BARTER PRIVATE LIMITED

At the beginning of the year 482,500                       4.58                    

At the End of the year 482,500               4.58                             
5 HORA VANIJYA PRIVATE LIMITED

At the beginning of the year 475,000                       4.51

At the End of the year 475,000               4.51
6 KANAD EXIM LTD.

At the beginning of the year 450,000                       4.27

At the End of the year 450,000               4.27
7 INDUS LIFE ADVISORY & BROKING PRIVATE LIMITED

At the beginning of the year 429,800                       4.08

At the End of the year 429,800               4.08
8 MARUTI STOCKFIN PVT. LTD 

At the beginning of the year 369,000                       3.50

At the End of the year 369,000 3.5
9 VATSALYA DEALERS PVT. LTD

At the beginning of the year 350,700                       3.33

At the End of the year 350,700 3.33
10 HARSH SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

At the beginning of the year 350,000                       3.32                    

At the End of the year 350,000               3.32                             

Nil movement during the year

Nil movement during the year

Nil movement during the year

Nil movement during the year

Nil movement during the year

Nil movement during the year

Nil movement during the year

Nil movement during the year

Name of the Shareholder

Nil movement during the year

Nil movement during the year

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the Year

Change during the year 
Cumulative Shareholding during 

the year

(iv)      Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sl. No.



(v)      Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

No. of shares
% of total 

Shares of the 
company

Date Reason No. of Shares No. of shares
% of total Shares 
of the company

Devendra Prasad Jajodia (Managing Director)
At the beginning of the year                   300,000  2.85

At the End of the year            300,000  2.85
Shri Sanjiv Jajodia (Non‐Executive Promoter Director)
At the beginning of the year 1,447,498                   13.73

At the End of the year 1,447,498            13.73
Shri Gourav Jajodia  (Non‐Executive Promoter Director)
At the beginning of the year 600,000                       5.69

At the End of the year 600,000               5.69
Shri Vishal Bagri (Non‐Executive Independent Director)
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00

At the End of the year 0 0.00
Shri Anshuman Dalmia (Non‐Executive Independent Director)
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00

At the End of the year 0 0.00
Shri Mahesh Kumar Keyal (Non‐Executive Independent Director)
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00

At the End of the year 0 0.00

Ms. Ekta Agarwal (Non‐Executive Independent Director) **
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00

At the End of the year 0 0.00

Ms. Swati Agarwal (Non‐Executive Independent Director) *
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00

At the End of the year 0 0.00
Shri Susanta Sarkar (Executive Director)
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00

At the End of the year 0 0.00
Smt. Seema Chowdhury (KMP, being Company Secretary)
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00

At the End of the year 0 0.00
Shri Vijay Singh (KMP, being Chief Financial Officer)
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00

At the End of the year 0 0.00
* Appointed w.e.f 13.11.2015
** Resigned w.e.f 12.11.2015

11

Nil movement during the year

Sl. No. Name of the Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the beginning of  Change during the year 

Nil movement during the year

Nil movement during the year

Nil movement during the year

Nil movement during the year

Nil movement during the year

Nil movement during the year

Nil movement during the year

10

Nil movement during the year

7

Nil movement during the year

6

9

1

2

3

8

Nil movement during the year

4

5

Cumulative Shareholding during 



V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment
(In Rs)

 Secured Loans excluding deposits Unsecured Loans Deposit Total Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year (as on 
01.04.2015)  
i) Principal Amount 101,454,385.69                                               339,976,288.18                     -            441,430,673.87                     
ii) Interest due but not paid -                                                                  -                                        -            -                                        
iii) Interest accrued but not due -                                                                  -                                        -            -                                        
Total (i+ii+iii) 101,454,385.69                                               339,976,288.18                     -            441,430,673.87                     
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
1.  Addition -                                                                  8,109,972.00                         -            8,109,972.00                         
2.  Reduction 27,971,723.73                                                 1,308,496.85                         -            29,280,220.58                       
Net Change (27,971,723.73)                                                6,801,475.15                         -            (21,170,248.58)                     
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year (as on 
31.03.2016)
i) Principal Amount 73,482,661.96                                                 346,777,763.33                     -            420,260,425.29                     
ii) Interest due but not paid -                                                                  -                                        -            -                                        
iii) Interest accrued but not due -                                                                  -                                        -            -                                        
Total (i+ii+iii) 73,482,661.96                                                 346,777,763.33                     -            420,260,425.29                     



VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
(In Rs)

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Total Amount

Shri Devendra 
Prasad Jajodia 
(Managing 
Director)

Shri Susanta 
Sarkar 
(Professional 
Executive 
Director)

1 Gross salary 420,000              153,790            573,790                
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 -                      -                    -                        
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-
tax Act, 1961 -                      -                    -                        
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 -                      -                    -                        

2 Stock Option -                      -                    -                        
3 Sweat Equity -                      -                    -                        

4

Commision                                                     - 
as % of profit
- others, specify -                      -                    -                        

5 Others, please specify -                      -                    -                        
Total (A) 420,000              153,790            573,790                

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to Other Directors: (In Rs)

I. Independent Directors:
Particulars of Remuneration Total 

Shri Vishal 
Bagri

Shri 
Anshuman 
Dalmia

Shri Mahesh 
Kumar Keyal

Ms. Ekta 
Agarwal

Ms. Swati 
Agarwal

1 Fee for attending board / committee 
meetings Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

2 Commission
3 Others, please specify

Total (1)

(in Rs)

II.
Shri Sanjiv 
Jajodia

Shri Gourav 
Jajodia

Total Amount

1 Fee for attending board / committee 
meetings Nil Nil

2 Commission Nil Nil
3 Others, please specify - -

Total (2)
Total (B)=(1+2) Nil Nil
Total Managerial Remuneration (A+B) 573,790                

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
(In Rs)

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration
Smt. Seema 
Chowdhury

Shri Vijay 
Singh

Total

Gross salary 550,005              230,779            780,784                
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 - -                    -                        
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-
tax Act, 1961 - -                    -                        
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 - -                    -                        
Stock Option - -                    -                        
Sweat Equity - -                    -                        
Commision - -                    -                        
  - as % of profit - -                    -                        
  - others, specify - -                    -                        
Others, please specify - -                    -                        
Total (A) 550,005              230,779            780,784                

Key Managerial Personnel

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

In accordance with Schedule V of the Companies
Act, 2013

Other Non-Executive/ Nominee Directors

Name of Directors

In accordance with Schedule V of the Companies 
Act, 2013



VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Section of the 
Companies Act

Brief 
Description

Details of 
Penalty/ 
Punishment/ 
Compunding 
fees imposed

Authority [RD/ 
NCLT/ COURT]

Appeal 
made, if any 
(give details)

Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

NIL

             A. COMPANY

             B. DIRECTORS

             B. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

NIL

NIL



Chandi Steel Industries Limited 

 
 

 
 

“Annexure E” 
 
INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)(M) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH 
RULE 8 OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014, PERTAINING TO CONSERVATION OF 
ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO FOR 
THE FINANCIAL  YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016: 
 
A. Conservation of energy: 

 
a) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy and steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources 

of energy 
 
Continuous efforts/measures are being initiated and training programmes are being imparted to the workers at 
plant level for conservation of energy.  

 
b) Capital investment on energy conservation equipment: 
 

No Capital Investment has been made on energy conservation equipment. 
 

B. Technology absorption: 
 

i. Efforts made towards technology absorption: 
 

Continuous efforts are being made during the design, engineering and construction stage to ensure that the 
technology is understood and necessary measures to minimize energy consumption are incorporated in the 
plant. 

 
ii. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution: 
 

As a result of above efforts, there was improvement in product quality and productivity, better availability of 
materials, increase in house capability and saving in fixed processing cost.  

 
iii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 

financial year): 
 

a. The details of technology imported                                      : Nil 
b. The year of import                                           : Not Applicable 
c. Whether the technology been fully absorbed              : Not Applicable 
d. If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the 

reasons thereof  
: Not Applicable 

iv. Expenditure incurred on Research and Development: NIL 
   

C.  Foreign exchange earnings and outgo: 
  
Details of Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows and outgo in terms of actual outflows during the 
year under reporting:               
               (` in Lacs) 

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15 
Inflows 2,729.41 733.11 
Outgo Nil Nil 
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“Annexure F” 

 
DETAILS PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES 
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 FOR THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016 
 
i) The ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for 

the financial year: 
 

Sl. No. Name of Director Remuneration  
(Rs.) 

Median Remuneration of 
Employees (Rs.) 

Ratio 

1.  Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia 4,20,000

1,14,048 

3.68 times
2.  Shri Sanjiv Jajodia* 0 0
3.  Shri Susanta Sarkar 1,53,790 1.35 times
4.  Shri Gourav Jajodia* 0 0
5.  Shri Anshuman Dalmia* 0 0
6.  Shri Vishal Bagri** 0 0
7.  Shri Mahesh Kumar Keyal* 0 0
8.  Ms. Ekta Agarwal*** 0 0
9.  Smt. Swati Agarwal**** 0 0

*Resigned w.e.f. 1st April, 2016 
** Resigned w.e.f 15th April, 2016  
*** Resigned w.e.f 12th November, 2015 
**** Appointed w.e.f 13th November, 2015 
 

ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, 
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year: 
 
There has been increase in the remuneration of Shri Susanta Sarkar, Director of the Company and apart from him 
there is no increase in remuneration of other Directors and the Company Secretary of the Company in the financial 
year.  
 

Remuneration of Shri Susanta  
(As on 31st March, 2015) 

Remuneration of Shri Susanta 
 (As on 31st March, 2016)

Percentage increase in 
Remuneration 

1,33,000 1,53,790 15.63% 
 

iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 
 
There has been increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year as per following: 
 

Median Remuneration of 
Employees (As on 31st March, 

2015) 

Median Remuneration of 
Employees (As on 31st March, 

2016)

Percentage increase in Median 
Remuneration 

99,552 1,14,048 14.56% 
 

iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company: 
 
There were 57 employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 2016. 



Chandi Steel Industries Limited 

 

 
v) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in 

the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and 
justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial 
remuneration: 
 

Sl. No. Particulars % Increase 
1. Average increase in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel 
Nil 

2. Average increase in the remuneration of managerial 
personnel 

Nil 

 
     There are no exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration. 
 
vi) It is hereby confirmed that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 
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Report of the Directors on Corporate Governance 
 
Corporate Governance is all about maintaining a valuable relationship and trust with all stakeholders. We 
consider stakeholders as partners in our success and we remain committed to maximising stakeholders’ value, 
be it shareholders, employees, suppliers, customers, investors, communities or policy makers. The Company 
defines, follows and practices the highest level of corporate governance. Our corporate governance is a 
reflection of our value system encompassing our culture, policies and relationship with our stakeholders. 
Sound governance system is integral to creating enduring value for all. It lies in promoting and maintaining 
integrity, transparency and accountability in the management’s higher echelons and in taking ethical business 
decisions and conducting business in a manner that is beneficial to the interest of both the Company and its 
stakeholders. Integrity and transparency are key to our corporate governance practices and performance and 
ensure that we retain and gain the trust of our stakeholders at all times. 
 
The detailed report on Corporate Governance for the financial year ended 31st March, 2016 as per Regulation 
34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
is set out below.  This report gives the factual position as at the end of the financial year ended 31st March, 
2016. Wherever the context so requires for a better understanding of the situation, the developments post the 
period have also been covered. 
 
1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE 
 
Corporate Governance encompasses a set of systems and practices to ensure that the Company’s affairs are 
being managed in a manner which ensures accountability, transparency and fairness in all transactions in the 
widest sense. The Company is committed to observe good governance by focusing on highest standards of 
transparency, accountability, integrity and law abiding behaviour and to meet stakeholders’ aspirations and 
social expectations. 
 
Good Corporate Governance has always been an integral part of the Company’s day to day activities. We, at 
Chandi Steel Industries Limited aim to encourage the observance of these standards to protect, cater and 
promote the interest of all stakeholders and are guided by the six core values of Customer value, Ownership 
Mindset, Respect, Integrity, One Team and Excellence.  
Pursuant to Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) the Company has executed fresh listing agreement with the 
Stock Exchange wherein the equity shares of the Company are listed viz. The Calcutta Stock Exchange 
Limited. 
 
During the year, the Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 
read with Schedule V and sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, 
erstwhile Clause 49 of the Listing agreement, as applicable, with regard to corporate governance. 
 
2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
We believe that Board needs to have an appropriate mix of executive and non-executive directors to maintain 
its independence and separate its function of governance and management. The Board of Directors (‘the 
Board’) is at the core of our corporate governance practice and oversees how the Management serves and 
protects the long-term interest of all our stakeholders. We believe that an active, well-informed and 
independent Board is necessary to ensure the highest standards of corporate governance. The non- executive 
directors including independent directors are person of high integrity and are vastly competent and experienced 
and they take a constructive part in the Board and its Committee Meetings. They act as a catalyst in fostering 
growth and play a major role in implementing best Corporate Governance practices. The Board reviews its 
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strength and composition from time to time to ensure that it remains aligned with the statutory, as well as 
business requirements. 
 

 Composition and Category of Directors  
 
As on 31st March, 2016, the Company has eight directors. Of eight directors, six are Non-Executive 
Directors out of which four are Independent Directors. The composition of Board is in conformity with the 
Regulation 17 of the SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015 read with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

          The detailed composition and Category of the Board as on 31st March, 2016 is tabled below: 
 
 

Name of Directors Category
Shri  Devendra Prasad Jajodia  Promoter Executive Director  (Chairman & Managing Director) 
Shri Sanjiv Jajodia Promoter Non-Executive Director  
Shri Gourav Jajodia Promoter Non-Executive Director 
Shri Vishal Bagri Non-Executive Independent Director 
Shri Anshuman Dalmia Non-Executive Independent Director 
Shri Mahesh Kumar Keyal Non-Executive Independent Director 
Shri Susanta Sarkar Professional Executive Director 
Ms. Ekta Agarwal* Non-Executive Independent Director 
Ms. Swati Agarwal Non-Executive Independent Director 

 

*ceased to be Director w.e.f 11th November, 2015 
 

Pursuant to Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and clause 49(II)(A) of the Listing Agreement with the 
Stock Exchange, the Company has appointed Ms. Swati Agarwal (DIN: 07158355) as an Additional Director 
(Category: Non-Executive Independent Director) w.e.f. 13th November, 2015. 
 

Shri Sanjiv Jajodia, Shri Gourav Jajodia, Shri Anshuman Dalmia and Shri Mahesh Kumar Keyal resigned from 
the post of Directorship of the Company from the closing hours of 31st March, 2016. Further, Shri Vishal Bagri 
ceased to be a director w.e.f 15th April, 2016. 
 

Shri Ashok Kumar Choudhary (DIN : 07603658 ) and Shri Sumit Kumar Rakshit (DIN : 07603642) were 
appointed as Additional Directors (Category: Non-Executive Independent Director) w.e.f. 1st September, 2016 
pursuant to Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 

 None of the Directors on the Board hold directorship in more than ten public companies. Further none 
of them is a member of more than ten committees or chairman of more than five committees across all 
the public companies as on 31st March, 2016. Necessary disclosures regarding Committees positions 
in other public companies as on 31st March, 2016 have been given by the Directors.  
 

 Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI 
(LODR), Regulations, 2015 read with Section 149(6) of Companies Act, 2013. The maximum tenure 
of independent directors is in compliance with the Act. All the Independent directors have confirmed 
that they meet the criteria as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015 
read with Section 149(6) of Companies Act, 2013.   
 
 

 A Formal Letter setting out the terms and conditions of appointment has been issued to all the 
Independent Directors as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and clause 49(II)(B) of the 
amended Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange. The same has been hosted on the Company’s 
website and can be accessed via link http://www.jaibalajigroup.com/chandi-steel/letter-
appointment.pdf of the Company. 
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 None of the non-executives directors is serving as Independent Directors in more than seven listed 

entities. Further, any independent director serving as whole time director in any listed entity is not 
serving as Independent Director in more than 3 listed entities.  
 

 At the time of appointment and thereafter at the beginning of each financial year, the Independent 
Director shall submit a self-declaration, confirming their independence and compliance with various 
eligibility criteria laid down by the Company, among other disclosures and the Company also ensures 
that the Directors meet the eligibility criteria of independence. All such declarations were placed 
before the Board for information. 

 
 Particulars of number of Board Meetings held and attendance of each Director at Board Meetings 

and last Annual General Meeting 
 

The Board ensures that the Company’s reporting and disclosures practices meet the highest standards of 
Corporate Governance and that the business practices followed by the Company are oriented towards meeting 
obligations towards various stakeholders and enhancing shareholders value. The Company has also complied 
with Secretarial Standards-1 as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India in relation to the 
compliance while conducting Board Meeting. 
 
The Board generally meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company’s business policy and 
strategy apart from normal business. Agenda and Notes on the agenda are circulated among the Directors, well 
in advance in a structured format. All the Agenda items are supported by relevant information, documents and 
presentation to enable the Board to take informed decisions. Every Board member can suggest the inclusion of 
additional items in the agenda provided unanimous consent has been received by the Board Members. 
During the financial year 2015-16, 9 (Nine) meetings of the Board were held viz., 30th April, 2015, 26th May, 
2015, 13th August, 2015, 31st August, 2015, 26th September, 2015, 6th November, 2015, 13th November, 2015, 
11th February, 2016 and 31st March, 2016. The maximum time gap between two consecutive board meetings 
did not exceed one hundred and twenty days and the necessary quorum was present at all the meetings.  
 
The details of Board Meeting held and attendance of each Director at the Board meetings during the financial 
year 2015-16 and at the last Annual General Meeting held on 29th September, 2015 are listed below:  

Name of Directors No. of Board 
Meetings attended Whether attended last AGM  

Shri  Devendra Prasad Jajodia  9 Yes 
Shri Sanjiv Jajodia 9 Yes 
Shri Gourav Jajodia 9 Yes 
Shri Vishal Bagri 9 Yes 
Shri Anshuman Dalmia 9 Yes 
Shri Mahesh Kumar Keyal 9 Yes 
Shri Susanta Sarkar 9 Yes 
Ms. Ekta Agarwal* 6 Yes 
Ms. Swati Agarwal** 3 - 

*Resigned w.e.f 11th November, 2015 
** Appointed w.e.f 12th November, 2015 
 
 Ms. Seema Chowdhury, Company Secretary of the Company was present at all meetings of the Board of 
Directors held during the financial year    2015-16 and at the last Annual General Meeting. 
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Separate Meeting of Independent Directors  
 
Code for Independent Directors prescribed under Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and pursuant to 
Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 mandate 
that the independent directors of the Company hold at least one separate meeting in a year, without the 
attendance of non-independent directors and members of the management. Further, all independent directors of 
the Company must strive to be present at such meeting. 
 
During the year 2015-16, the separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 11th February, 2016. 
The Independent directors of the Company, inter-alia, reviewed the performance of the non-independent 
directors and the Board as a whole, as well as the performance of the Chairman of the Board, taking into 
account the views of executive and non-executive directors; assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of 
flow of information between the Management and Board which is necessary to effectively and reasonably 
perform and discharge their duties. The Directors were satisfied with the overall performance of the Board and 
the contribution made by the Directors at different parameters in their individual capacity. 
 
 Number of other Directorship and Committee Membership/Chairmanship  

 
The Number of directorship and committee membership/chairmanship held by each director in other 
companies is tabled below: 
 

Name of Directors 

Number of directorship held in 
other companies

Number of committee position held in 
Public Limited Companies ***

Public Limited 
Companies* 

Others** Committee 
Membership(s) 

Committee 
Chairmanship(s) 

Shri  Devendra Prasad Jajodia  1 2 - - 
Shri Sanjiv Jajodia 8 1 - 1 
Shri Gourav Jajodia 3 - 1 - 
Shri Vishal Bagri 1 3 1 - 
Shri Anshuman Dalmia - 5 - - 
Shri Mahesh Kumar Keyal - 4 - - 
Shri Susanta Sarkar - - - - 
Ms. Ekta Agarwal - - - - 
Ms. Swati Agarwal 1 - 1 - 
*Includes alternate directorship in public limited companies (excluding Chandi Steel Industries Limited) and 
directorship in private companies that are either holding or subsidiary of a public company. 
**Includes directorship of any private limited companies (including alternate directorship), companies incorporated 
outside India and companies under section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.  
*** Membership(s)/Chairmanship(s) of only the Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of all 
Indian Public Limited Companies [listed and unlisted] as required by Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (excluding Chandi Steel Industries Limited)  
 
The facts and figures as stated above are based on the declarations received from the directors for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2016.  

 
 Disclosure of Relationship between Directors Inter-se 

 
None of the directors are related to each other or to the promoters except Shri Sanjiv Jajodia and Shri 
Devendra Prasad Jajodia who are related as brothers and Shri Gourav Jajodia is son of Shri Devendra Prasad 
Jajodia. 
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 Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors 
 

Details of equity shares of the Company held by Non-executive Directors as on March, 31, 2016 are given 
below: 
 

NAME CATEGORY NUMBER OF EQUITY 
SHARES 

Shri Sanjiv Jajodia Promoter Non-executive Director  14,47,498 
Shri Gourav Jajodia Promoter Non-executive Director 6,00,000 

  

The Company has not issued any convertible instruments during the year 2015-16. 
 
 Familiarisation Programme imparted to Independent Directors 

 
Pursuant to Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
the Company should familiarize the independent directors through various programmes conducted by the Company. 
The Independent Directors, are made aware of the present nature of the industry in which the Company 
operates and challenges faced by it, the business model of the Company etc. and the programme also intends to 
provide insights into the Company so that Independent Directors can understand their roles, rights and 
responsibilities that they are expected to perform to keep them updated on the operations and business of the 
Company thereby facilitating active participation in managing the affairs of the Company.  
Familiarisation programme was conducted by the Company on 11th February, 2016 in the presence of the 
Chairman and Managing Director, the Company Secretary and all the existing Independent Directors of the 
Company. The details of the familiarisation programme have been hosted on the company’s website and are 
available on the web link http://www.jaibalajigroup.com/chandi-steel/familiarisation-programme-details.pdf 
 
3. BOARD COMMITTEES 
 
In order to ensure better governance and accountability and to deal with specific areas/concerns, the Board 
provides and evaluates the Company’s strategic direction, management policies and their effectiveness and 
assures that shareholders long term interests are being served. The Board periodically evaluates the 
performance of all the committees. The minutes of the committee meetings are placed before the Board and all 
observations, recommendations and decisions of the Committees are placed before the Board for consideration 
and approval. Composition of various committees of the Board of Directors is also hosted on the website on 
the web link http://www.jaibalajigroup.com/chandi-steel/composition-of-various-committees-of-board-of-
directors.pdf. 
 
Details of various Board level Committees of the Company are as follows: 
 

 Audit Committee 
 
The Board has a qualified and independent Audit Committee acting as a link between the Management, the 
Statutory Auditor, the Internal Auditor, the Cost Auditor and the Board of Directors.  
 
 
 
 

 Terms of reference of the committee 
 

In order to ensure conformity with Section 177(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 read with of 
Part C of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as 
effective from December 1, 2015, the Board of Directors has, at its meeting held on 13th November, 2015, 
approved the following revised terms of reference for the Audit Committee (‘the committee’):  
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• Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 

information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;  
 

• Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of the auditors of the 
company;  

 

• Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory 
auditors;  

 

• Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon 
before submission to the board for approval with particular reference to: 

 
 matters required to be included in the directors’ responsibility statement to be included in 

the Board’ s Report in terms of Clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013; 

 changes if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same 
 major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgement by 

management; 
 significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings; 
 compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements; 
 disclosure of any related party transactions; 
 modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;    

 
• Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the 

board for approval; 
 

• Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an 
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for 
purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report 
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights 
issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;  

 

• Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of 
audit process;  

 

• Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;  
 

• Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;  
 

• Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary; 
 

• Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
 

• Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 
internal control systems;  

 
• Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal 

audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure 
coverage and frequency of internal audit;  

 

• Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;  
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• Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where  
there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature 
and reporting the matter to the board;  

 

• Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of 
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

 

• To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture 
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;  

 

• To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;  
 

• Approval of appointment of chief financial officer (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any 
other person heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the 
qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate; 

 

• Carrying out any other functions as mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. 
 

• The committee shall mandatorily review the following information: 
 

 Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operation; 
 Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), 

submitted by the management; 
 Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses as issued by statutory auditors;  
 Internal Audit Report related to internal control weaknesses; and 
 The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be 

subject to review by the audit committee. 
 Statement of deviations: 

 

(a) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if 
applicable, submitted to the stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) 

(b) Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7). 

 

 Composition, Name of the members and Chairperson of the Committee  
 

As on March 31, 2016, the Audit Committee comprises of 3 Directors details of which are given hereunder:  
 
 

Name of the members Category 
Shri Anshuman Dalmia (Chairman) Non-Executive Independent Director 
Shri Mahesh Kumar Keyal Non-Executive Independent Director 
Shri Vishal Bagri Non-Executive Independent Director 

 
The Committee’s composition meets with requirement of Section 177(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. All members of the 
Audit Committee are financially literate and possess requisite accounting or financial management expertise. 
The Chairman of the committee is an Independent Director, elected by the Members of Committee. Shri 
Anshuman Dalmia, Chairman of the Audit Committee, was present at the last Annual General Meeting held on 
29th September, 2015 to answer the shareholders queries. Ms. Seema Chowdhury, Company Secretary acts as 
the Secretary to the committee.  
 
The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 31st March, 2016 re-constituted the Audit Committee w.e.f        
1st April, 2016. Ms. Swati Agarwal (Category: Non-executive Independent Director) was inducted as the 
member of the Audit Committee and thereby designated as the Chairman of the Committee. Shri Anshuman 
Dalmia, Shri Mahesh Kumar Keyal and Shri Vishal Bagri have ceased to be the member of the Committee 
w.e.f 1st April, 2016. 
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 Meetings of the Audit Committee and Attendance of the Members at the meetings 
 

During the financial year 2015-16, 6 (Six) meetings of the Audit Committee were held viz., 26th May, 2015; 
13th August, 2015; 31st August, 2015; 26th September, 2015; 13th November, 2015 and 11th February, 2016 . 
The maximum time gap between two consecutive audit committee meetings did not exceed four months. The 
necessary quorum was present at all the meetings. 
 
The attendance of each of the member at the meetings of the committee held during the financial year 2015-16 
is tabled below: 
 

 
Name of the members No. of meetings attended 
Shri Anshuman Dalmia (Chairman) 6 
Shri Mahesh Kumar Keyal 6 
Shri Vishal Bagri 6 

 
The necessary quorum was present at all the meetings. The Audit Committee invites Chief Financial Officer 
and a representative of Statutory Auditor of the Company as considered appropriate by the committee for each 
meeting to provide inputs on issues relating to accounts, taxation, risk management etc. The Company 
Secretary attended all the committee meetings. Minutes of the committee meetings are placed and discussed in 
length before the Board. 
 

 Nomination & Remuneration Committee  
 
 Terms of reference of the committee 

 
In order to ensure conformity with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 read with Part 
D of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as effective 
from December 1, 2015, the Board of Directors has, at its meeting held on 13th November, 2015, approved the 
following revised terms of reference for the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (‘the committee’):  

 
• Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 

director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, 
key managerial personnel and other employees; 

• Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of 
directors; 

• Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors; 
• Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 

management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their 
appointment and removal. 

• Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the 
report of performance evaluation of independent directors. 
 

 Composition, Name of the members and Chairperson of the Committee  
 
As on March, 31, 2016, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of 3 Non-executive Directors, 
details of which are given hereunder:  
 

Name of the Members Category 
Shri Anshuman Dalmia (Chairman) Non-Executive Independent Director 
Shri Vishal Bagri Non-Executive Independent Director 
Shri Mahesh Kumar Keyal Non-Executive Independent Director 



 
 
 
 

Chandi Steel Industries Limited 

 

 
The Committee’s composition meets with requirement of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Chairman of 
the committee, Shri Anshuman Dalmia, was present at the last Annual General Meeting to answer the queries 
of the shareholders. 
 
The committee was re-constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company w.e.f 1st April, 2016.                  
Shri Anshuman Dalmia, Shri Vishal Bagri and Shri Mahesh Kumar Keyal tendered their resignation and 
ceased to be the member of the committee w.e.f 1st April, 2016. Further, Ms. Swati Agarwal (Category: Non-
executive Independent Director) was inducted as the member of the Committee and thereby designated as the 
Chairman of the committee. 
 
 Meetings of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Attendance of the Members at the 

meetings 
 
During the financial year 2015-16, 4 (Four) meeting of the committee was held viz., 16th April, 2015;           
30th April, 2015; 13th August, 2015 and 13th November, 2015. The necessary quorum was present at all the 
meetings. 
 
The attendance of each of the member at the meetings of the committee held during the financial year 2015-16 
is tabled below: 
 

Name of the Members No. of meetings attended 
Shri Anshuman Dalmia (Chairman) 4 
Shri Vishal Bagri 4 
Shri Mahesh Kumar Keyal 4 

 
All the recommendations made by the Committee during the year was accepted by the Board. Minutes of the 
committee meetings were placed and discussed in length before the Board. 
 
 Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors 

 
Pursuant to applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company has 
formulated a criteria for efficient evaluation of performance of the Independent Directors for assessing the 
balance of skills, knowledge and experience and building team work among board member and overall growth 
of the organisations.  
 
Performance of the Board and Board Committees were evaluated on various parameters such as structure, 
composition, quality, diversity, experience, competencies, performance of specific duties and obligations, 
quality of decision-making and overall Board effectiveness. Performance of individual Directors was evaluated 
on parameters such as meeting attendance, participation and contribution, responsibility towards stakeholders 
and independent judgement. 
 
The Board evaluation process was undertaken on 13th November, 2015 where individual opinions of all 
directors were taken into account. The performance of each category was evaluated and it was concluded 
taking in views of all the Board of Directors of the Company and expressing their satisfaction over the 
evaluation process and the results thereof.  
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 Board Diversity policy 
 

Every Company is required to have diversified Board to meet the flexible environment changes penetrating 
inside the industry. Your Company has formulated a Board diversity policy as per the recommendation of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee to have a diversified Board in achievement of the Company’s 
strategic and commercial objectives. 

 

 
 Stakeholders’ Grievance Committee  

 
The stakeholders’ grievances committee is constituted in line with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Regulation 20 read with Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 
 
The committee is empowered to supervise and ensure efficient transfer of equity shares of the Company and 
proper and timely attendance of investors’ grievances. The Committee has delegated the power of approving 
requests for transfer, transmission, rematerialisation and dematerialisation etc of shares of the Company to the 
executives of the Secretarial Department of the Company. 
 

 Mr. Gourav Jajodia, Promoter Non-Executive Director, is the Chairman of the Committee. 
 Ms. Seema Chowdhury, Company Secretary, is designated as the Compliance Officer of the 

Committee 
 The Committee expressed its satisfaction with the Company’s performance in dealing with the 

investor grievances ad its share transfer system. 
 

 Details of investor complaint received and resolved during the Financial Year 2015-16 are as follows: 
 
Investor Grievance at 
the beginning of the 
year 

Investor complaint 
received during the 
year 

Investor complaint 
resolved during the 
year 

Investor Grievance at 
the end of the year 

NIL - - NIL 
 

 
4. DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION 
 
Remuneration policy in the Company is designed to create high performance culture. It enables the Company 
to attract, retain and motivate employees to achieve results. The remuneration policy supports such mobility 
through pay models to that are compliant to local regulation. The company has formulated Nomination & 
Remuneration policy which forms a part of Boards’ Report and is also available on the Company’s website 
on the web link http://www.jaibalajigroup.com/chandi-steel/nomination-remuneration-policy.pdf. The 
Company does not have any scheme for grant of Stock Options to its Directors, Managing Directors or other 
employees. The Company pays remuneration by way of salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances to its 
Executive Director.  
 
 All Pecuniary Relationship or Transaction of the Non-executive Directors  

 
The Non-executives Independent Directors of the Company does not have any material pecuniary 
relationships or transactions with the Company or its directors or senior management other than in the 
ordinary course of business.  
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 Criteria of payments: 
 
The remuneration determined for the Executive/Non-executive Director is subject to the approval of the Board, 
the Members and approval of Central Government wherever applicable. 
 

 Non-Executive Directors: 
 
The Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to receive remuneration at present. Therefore, no sitting fee for 
participation in the Board Meeting or any commission is paid by the Company to the Non-executive Directors.  
 

 Executive Directors: 
 
The Company pays remuneration by way of salary as a fixed component. As on 31st March, 2016, the Board 
comprises of 2 executive directors i.e, Shri Devendra Prasad jajodia, Managing Director and Shri Susanta 
Sarkar, Executive Director of the Company. The remuneration paid to to Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia is 
governed by terms and condition of appointment of Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia which includes his tenure for 
5 years as effective from 1st April, 2012.  
 
During the year 2015-16, the remuneration paid to Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia was revised from                 
Rs. 3,00,000/- p.m. to Rs. 35,000/- p.m. w.e.f  1st April, 2015 pursuant to the authority granted to the Board by 
the members of the Company at its Annual General Meeting held on 29th September, 2012 and the said 
remuneration is within the limits as specified under Section 197 read with Part B of Part II of Schedule V and 
other applicable prrovisons, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013. 

         
(Rs.)                                                                                                                   

 
5. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 
 

 Annual General Meeting (AGM) 
 
The location, date and time of the last three Annual General Meeting are as follows: 
 

Financial Date Time Location 
2014-15 Tuesday,               

29th September, 2015 
11:00 A.M. Registered Office: 3, Bentinck Street, Kolkata – 

700 001 
2013-14 Tuesday,               

30th September, 2014 
11:00 A.M. Registered Office: 3, Bentinck Street, Kolkata – 

700 001 
2012-13 Saturday,              

28th September, 2013 
2:00 P.M. 

 
Registered Office: 3, Bentinck Street, Kolkata – 
700 001 

 
 

 Special Resolutions passed in the previous 3 Annual General Meeting 
 

 
The following Special Resolutions were taken up in the last three AGMs and were passed with requisite 
majority. 

Name of the Directors Salary 
 

Benefits / Allowances, etc. 
(fixed component) 

Total 
 

Shri Devendra Prasad Jajodia 4,20,000 Nil 4,20,000 
Shri Susanta Sarkar 1,53,790 Nil 1,53,790 
Total 5,73,790 Nil 5,73,790 
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2014-15 i. To enter into contracts, arrangements, transactions including material transaction with its 

related parties under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

2013-14 
 

ii. Borrowing Powers of the Board of Directors under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

iii. Creation of charges, mortgages and hypothecations on the movable and immovable 
properties of the Company comprising the whole or substantially the whole of any of its 
undertaking(s), both present and future, under Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

2012-13 No Special Resolution was passed. 
 

 Special Resolution passed through postal ballot during financial year 2015-16 
 
No special resolution was passed through the exercise of postal ballot during the financial year under review. 
Further, no special resolution has been proposed to be passed vide postal ballot at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting.  
 
6. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
 
 Quarterly Results 

In compliance with Clause 41 of the Listing Agreement and Regulation 33 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as effective from December, 1, 2015, the Company submits the 
quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results in the prescribed format to the stock exchange as soon as the 
same are approved and taken on record by the Board. The same is hosted on the website of the Company i.e. 
www.jaibalajigroup.com.  
The Company has promptly intimated all material information including official news and release vide its 
website and the same is sent to Stock Exchange, if any. 
 
 Newspapers wherein results are normally published 

Pursuant to Regulation 47 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company are normally published in Financial Express 
(English Newspaper), and Ekdin & Arthik Lipi (Vernacular Newspaper). 
 
 Website 

In compliance with Regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
as effective from December, 1, 2015 the Company is maintaining a functional website i.e. 
www.jaibalajigroup.com containing the basic required information and is comprehensive reference on the 
Company’s management, vision, mission, policies, operations, financials etc. 
  
 Presentation made to Institutional Investors or to the Analyst  

The presentations, if any, made to institutional investors and analysts at investors meet from time to time are 
also posted on the Company’s website.  
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7. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 
 

38th Annual General Meeting 
 

   Day/Date : Friday, 30th September, 2016 
Time        : 11:00 a.m. 

  Venue      : 3, Bentinck Street, Kolkata – 700 001 
Financial Year   1st April, 2015 to 31st March, 2016 

 
Date of book closure 
 

 The Register of Members and Share Transfer Book shall 
remain closed from Saturday, 24th September, 2016 to 
Friday, 30th September, 2016 

Financial calendar (tentative schedule) for the 
year  2016-17 

:  1st April, 2016 to 31st March, 2017 

The probable dates for submission of the Financial 
Results for the financial year 2016-17: 

1st  Quarter Results 11th August, 2016 

2nd  Quarter Results On or before 14th Nov, 
2016 

3rd Quarter Results On or before 14th Feb, 
2016 

Annual Results On or before 30th May, 
2017 

Date of Dividend payment                                       N.A.  
 

Listing on stock exchanges             The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited 
7, Lyons Range 
Kolkata – 700 001 

The Listing Fees as applicable have been paid 
Stock code  10013341 
Depositories : National Securities Depository Limited 

Trade world, 4th Floor, ‘A’ Wing 
Kamala Mills Compound 
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel 
Mumbai – 400 013 
 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
17th Floor, Dalal Street 
Mumbai – 400 001 
 
Annual Custodial Fees pertaining to year 2016-17 have 
been duly paid. 

Demat International Security Identification 
Number (ISIN)  in NSDL and CDSL 

  

INE204G01017 

Corporate Identification Number (CIN)  L13100WB1995PLC031670 
 

 Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 
 

Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. 
6, Mangoe Lane, 2nd Floor 
Kolkata - 700 001 
Phone No.: (91) (33) 2243 5029/5809 
E-mail: mdpldc@yahoo.com 
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 Share transfer system                               

 
The Company has retained Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited to carry out transfer related activities. 
Authorised personnel are approving the transfer on periodical basis. All valid transfers are affected within 
stipulated days. Share certificate received at registered office are also sent to the Registrars and Share Transfer 
agent at the above mentioned address for doing the needful. In case of electronic transfer, the bye laws of 
Depositories are complied with. The Stakeholders Relationship Committee records the number of transfer 
request and oversees its execution. 
 
The Company obtains half-yearly certificate of compliance pertaining to share transfer formalities as required 
under Clause 47(c) of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchange and Regulation 40(9) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as effective from December, 1, 2015 from a Company 
Secretary in Practice and files a copy of the said certificate with the Stock Exchange.  
 
Further, the Company also obtains a Compliance Certifiacte under Regulation 7(3) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as  effective from December, 1, 2015 in relation to 
both physical and electronic share transfer facility maintained by Registrars and Share Transfer agent i.e. 
Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited. 

 

 Categories Of Shareholders as on 31st March, 2016 
 

1 Category No. of 
Shareholders 

No. of shares 
held  

As a %age 
of A+B+C 

A 
  
  
  

Promoter and Promoter Group Holding   
Indian 11 5,040,698 47.83 
Foreign Nil NIL NIL 
Total Promoter Shareholding (A) 11 5,040,698 47.83 

B 
  
  

Public Holding   
Institutions Nil Nil Nil 
Non-Institutions 653 54,99,302 52.17 
Total Public Shareholding                (B)  653 5,499,302 52.17 

C 
  

  

Shares held by Custodian & against which 
Depository receipts have been issued (C) Nil NIL NIL 

Grand Total (A+B+C) 664 10,540,000 100.00 
 
 

 Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2016 
 

Range of ordinary shares held No of 
Shareholders 

Percentage (%)     
to total 

shareholders 
No. of Shares Percentage (%) 

to share capital 

Up to 500 623 93.83 147,600 1.40 
501 to 1000 8 1.20 7,300 0.07 

5001 to 10000 1 0.15 6,402 0.06 
10001         and         above 32 4.82 10,378,698 98.47 

Total 664 100.00 10,540,000 100.00 
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8. DISCLOSURES 
 
 Related Party Disclosures 

 

All material transactions entered into with related parties as defined under the Act and Regulation 23 of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 during the financial year were in 
ordinary course of business. These have been approved by the Audit Committee. The Board has approved a 
policy for related party transactions which has been uploaded on the Company’s website on the web link 
http://www.jaibalajigroup.com/chandi-steel/related-party-policy.pdf. 
 

The Company has entered into certain material related party transactions with its related parties which are 
continuing beyond 31st March, 2016 and they do not have any potential conflict with the interest of the 
Company at large. Further, approval of the members have been taken at the Annual General Meeting of the 
Company for the financial year 2014-15. Considering the fact that the Company frequently enters into 
transactions with its related parties and such transactions are repetitive in nature, the Company has at the 
meeting of the Audit Committee held on 13th August, 2015 obtained omnibus approval of the Committee for 
all related party transactions subject to their value not exceeding Rs.1 (One) crore per transaction valid upto a 
period of 1 (One) year from the date of such approval pursuant to clause 49(VI)(D) of the listing Agreement 
with the Stock Exchange. The Company at its meeting held on 30th May, 2016 has obtained a fresh approval 
which shall be valid for a period of 1 (one) year pursuant to Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. A Statement of such transactions is periodically placed 
before the audit committee for review. Also, all related party transactions are placed before the audit 
committee for approval. Further, approval from the members have been taken at the previous Annual General 
meeting for such transactions. 
 

 Details of non- compliance  
 

There was no non-compliance of any of the provision applicable to the Company. No penalties or strictures 
have been imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange, Board or any Statutory Authority for non-compliance 
of any matter related to the capital markets. 
 
 Details of Establishment of Vigil Mechanism, Whistleblower Policy and affirmation that no 

personnel has been denied access to the audit committee 
 

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism as 
defined under Section 177 of the Companies Act. 2013 and Regulation 22 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for directors and employees to report concerns about 
unethical behaviour or suspected frauds and violation of companies code of Conduct. All the personnel of the 
Company have the access to the Audit Committee and no person was denied access to the Chairman of the 
Audit Committee. The said policy has also been put up on the website of the Company at the following link 
http://www.jaibalajigroup.com/chandi-steel/whistle-blower-policy.pdf pursuant to Regulation 30 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
 Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirement 

 
* The Company has complied with all applicable mandatory requirements as specified in the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
 

* The Company has also adopted a Policy on Determination of Materiality of events to be disclosed with the Stock 
Exchange which is available on the website of the Company on the web link 
http://www.jaibalajigroup.com/chandi-steel/policy-on-determing-materiality-of-events-and-information-for 
disclosure-to-the-stock-exchange.pdf pursuant to Regulation 30 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
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* The Company has adopted a Policy for Preservation of Documents approved by the Board of Directors in 

relation to preservation of documents which shall be permanent in nature and preservation of documents with 
preservation period of not less than 8 years of the completion of the relevant transfers as per Regulation 9 of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  
 
ADOPTION OF NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENT: 
 

* Shareholder rights 
Since the Quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company are published newspapers and 
regularly hosted on the Company’s website, these are not sent individually to the shareholders of the 
Company. 
 
* Modified opinion(s) in Audit Report 
The Company’s Financial Statement does not contain any audit qualifications. 

 
* Reporting of internal Auditor 
The Internal Auditor reports indirectly to the Audit Committee and make presentations thereof. 
 
 Disclosure of Accounting Treatment 

 

The Company has complied with all the relevant Accounting Standards notified under the Companies 
(Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India in preparation of 
its financial statements.  
 
 Code of Conduct 

 

In compliance with Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and the Companies act, 2013, the Company has framed and adopted a code of Conduct and ethics (‘the Code’). 
The code is applicable to the members of the Board, the executive officers and all employees of the Company. The 
code is available on our website http://www.jaibalajigroup.com/chandi-steel/code-conduct-directors-
seniormanagement.pdf. All the members of the Board and the executive officers have affirmed compliance to 
the Code as on 31st March, 2016. 
 
 Prevention of Insider Trading 

 

The Company has adopted a policy on prevention of Insider Trading to regulate, monitor and report trading by 
insiders under the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. This policy also includes practices 
and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price-sensitive information, initial and continual disclosure. 
The policy is available on our website http://www.jaibalajigroup.com/chandi-steel/code-conduct-2015.pdf.  
 
 Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Directors Report. 
 
 Proceeds from public issues, rights issues, preferential issues, etc.  

 

The Company has not raised any money from public issues, rights issues, preferential issues, etc. during the 
financial year 2015-16. 
 
 Subsidiary Companies  

 

The Company does not have any wholly owned subsidiaries as on 31st March, 2016. 
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 CEO and CFO Certification 
 

As required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, The Managing 
Director and the Chief Financial Officer certification is provided in this Annual report.  

 
 Risk Management  

 

Risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process within the Company and is periodically reviewed by 
the Board. 
 
 Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit 

 

Ms. Premlata Soni, qualified practising Company Secretary, carried out the Share Capital Reconciliation Audit 
to reconcile the total admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital of the Company. The audit 
confirms that the total issued/paid-up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form 
and the total number of dematerialised shares held in electronic mode with NSDL and CDSL. 
 
 

 Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance 
 

As required by Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
Auditors’ Certificate on corporate governance is annexed to the Boards’ Report.   

 
 

For and on behalf of the Board 
   
           Sd/- 
Place: Kolkata                                                                        Devendra Prasad Jajodia 
Date: 3rd September, 2016                                               Chairman & Managing Director
                                        (DIN: 00045166) 
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Declaration 
 
As provided under Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, this is to confirm that a Code of Conduct has been laid down by the Board of Directors of Chandi 
Steel Industries Limited, which has been made applicable to all the Directors and the Senior Management 
Personnel of the Company. 
 
The Code of Conduct has been affirmed to by all the members of the Board and the Senior Management 
Personnel of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2016.  
 
The said Code of Conduct is posted on the website of the Company, namely, www.jaibalajigroup.com.  

 
           Sd/- 

Place : Kolkata                                     Devendra Prasad Jajodia 
Date  :  3rd September, 2016                                                                   Managing Director 
                                                                                                                                (DIN: 00045166) 
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CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION  
[Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 
 

To,  
The Board of Directors 
Chandi Steel Industries Limited 
 
We, Devendra Prasad Jajodia, Managing Director and Tushar Kanti Sarkar, Chief Financial Officer of 
Chandi Steel Industries Limited(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), certify that: 
 
1. We have reviewed the Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement of the Company, for 

the financial year ended 31st March, 2016 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:  
 

i. the aforesaid statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading; 

 
ii. the aforesaid statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs 

and are in compliance with the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and 
regulations. 

 
2. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during 

the year are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct; 
 

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the 
Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit 
Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we 
are aware and the step that we have taken or propose to take to rectify the identified 
deficiencies; 
 

4. That we have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee: 
i. Significant changes, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
ii. Significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same have 

been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements and; 
iii. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvements 

therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the 
company’s internal control system over financial reporting. 

 
       Sd/-    Sd/- 

Place: Kolkata    Devendra Prasad Jajodia                  Tushar Kant 
Date : 3rd September, 2016           Managing Director                       Chief Financial Officer   
                          DIN – 00045166                         
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 
COMPANY PROFILE 
 

The Company is engaged in manufacturing and Trading of Steel products and undertakes the 
activity of rolling of Alloy, Carbon and Mild Steel Rounds, Flats and Squares. It is the oldest 
manufacturer of these items in the State and has created a niche for itself amongst the valuable 
customers.  
 

ECONOMIC SCENARIO  
 

India is the third-largest steel producer in the world. In 2015, India produced 91.46 million tonnes 
(MT) of finished steel. Total finished steel production in the country increased at a CAGR of 7.45 per 
cent over FY011–15. 
 

Driven by rising infrastructure development and growing demand for automotives, steel 
consumption is expected to reach 104 MT by 2017. India’s steel production is expected to increase 
from 100 MTPA to 112.5 MTPA by FY16 and 300 MTPA by 2025. The Government of India has 
allowed 100 per cent foreign direct investment (FDI) in the steel sector under the automatic route. 
Nearly 301 MoUs have been signed with various states for planned capacity of about 486.7 MT. 
 
A new scheme, ‘The scheme for the promotion of R&D in the iron and steel sector’, has been 
approved with budgetary provision of US$ 24.6 million to initiate and implement the provisions of 
the scheme as per the 11th Five-Year Plan which has continued in the 12th Five Year Plan. The 
development of technology for Cold-Rolled Grain Oriented (CRGO) steel sheets and other value-
added products is also included under the policy purview and is allocated US$ 6.7 million. 
 

The Indian steel industry is very modern with state-of-the-art steel mills. It has always strived for 
continuous modernisation and up-gradation of older plants and higher energy efficiency levels. 
 

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENTS  
 
India’s crude steel capacity reached 109.85 Million Tonnes (MT) in 2014-15, a growth of 7.4 per 
cent. Production of crude steel grew by 8.9 per cent to 88. 98 MT. Total finished steel production for 
sale increased by 5.1 per cent to 92.16 MT. Consumption of total finished steel increased 3.9 per 
cent to 76.99 MT. 
 
India produced 7.34 MT of steel in the month of September 2015, which was nearly equal to the 
country's steel production in September 2014. 
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OPPORTUNITIES, THREATS, RISKS AND CONCERNS 

 

India’s status as a major player in the global steel industry is well acknowledged. The fast growing 
economy has welcomed multiple opportunities for an Industry to develop. The Steel Industry is 
evolving itself to become a global leader in terms of product quality and overall efficiency. 
Abundance of raw materials and cheap workforce makes Indian Steel Industry Competitive. The 
biggest opportunity before Indian steel sector is that there is enormous scope for increasing 
consumption of steel in almost all sectors in India. Infrastructure has been a key customer in India. 
Excellent potential exist for enhancing steel consumption in other sectors such as infrastructure, 
automobiles, packaging, engineering industries, irrigation, railways and water supply in India.  

 
Sector‐wise steel consumption  

 
There are many prospects that are helping grow the Indian Steel Industry. However, huge 
dependence on imported coking coal, low production efficiency, inadequate infrastructure & 
technology and delay in regulatory clearances & approvals are major hindrance to growth of the 
industry. Addressing these issues and challenges and building appropriate growth strategies can 
help attain the objective efficiently. 
 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
 
During the year under review the Company has earned revenue comprising of sales and other 
income of Rs. 6,707.74 lacs as compared to 4,749.95 lacs in the previous year registering a growth 
of 41.21% The Profit before Tax also recorded a growth and reached to 28.33 lacs as against Rs. 
14.07 lacs in the previous year.  The Net Profit for the year under review was Rs. 10.11 lacs. The 
Company shall endeavor to constantly improve its performance in the same pace to benefit all its 
stakeholders. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
 
Internal Control is a part of day to day management and administration of your Company. The 
Company has a proper and adequate system of Internal Control, commensurate with the size, scale 
and complexity of its operations to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of its operations to ensure 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business including adherence to corporate policies. Safeguarding 
of assets, prevention of frauds and errors accuracy and completeness of accounting records and 
preparation of reliable financial information. The Company has an Audit Committee to continuously 
monitor the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control environment across your company. 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
 
The Company believes in the values of "human resources" and realises its significance in the 
business success. It realizes that workforce makes a fundamental difference to the organization 
goals. Without it there can be no clear vision and objectives and its resources full potential will 
remain woefully untapped. It considers the commitment and competence of the human resource as 
the levers of the organisation’s growth. It aligns the individual goal and organizational goal in order 
to utilize organizational resources effectively and efficiently. 

The Company emphasis on the training and development of its human resource. The company 
strives to create an environment which helps its people take the initiative to experiment, innovate 
and develop a passion to set and achieve their goals. The company gives full room to its staff to 
nurture their intellect, exploit opportunities and make their own decisions while competing with the 
best, which thereby helps the company in its march towards progress.  

Cautionary Statement 
 
Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company’s objectives, 
projections, estimates and/or expectations may be “forward-looking statements” within the meaning 
of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or 
implied. Significant factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations include, among 
others, domestic and international economic conditions affecting demand/supply and price 
conditions, changes in the government regulations, tax regimes and other statutes and other 
incidental factor. 
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